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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

TEBREREEENWED N

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Dragonite International Limited
(the “"Company”), I hereby present the audited results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the "Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2011 (the
“Year”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group recorded an audited consolidated net loss of approximately
HK$314,081,000 for the Year (2010: HK$233,331,000). Due to the realized and
unrealized losses on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FAFVPL"),
there was a negative turnover of approximately HK$232,907,000 for the Year (2010:
negative turnover of approximately HK$61,425,000 (restated)). The net asset value
of the Group increased from HK$72,890,000 as at 31 December 2010 to
HK$235,852,000 as at 31 December 201 I, representing a 223.6% increment.

Loss for the Year was mainly attributable to the following factors:

[. As a result of the market turbulence in the stock market during the Year, the
Group recorded net realized and unrealized losses of approximately
HK$214,408,000 (2010: net gain of approximately HK$1,404,000 (restated))

on change in fair value of FAFVPL in the income statement.

2. The sales of electronic cigarette products were very minimal during the first

half of 201 | as the Group had been revamping its products.

3. Due to technical or commercial obsolescence, a provision for impairment of
inventory at about HK$31,796,000 (2010: HK$ 65,399,000) was made for the

Year.

4. The temporary suspension of the sales and production of health care products

caused substantial decrease in sales as compared to 201 |,

As for the pharmaceutical business, Azithromycin Granules (Il) ([ P2 2& & F8H )
and Rosiglitazone Hydrochloride Capsules ([ E8E& ML #&%I|EREEEE |) remained as two
key products of the Group for the sales during the Year. The continued increase in
prices of raw materials and energy, continued strategic price reduction of medicine
and irrational price competition have adversely affected the performance of trading
of pharmaceutical products. Turnover of pharmaceutical products for the Year was
approximately HK$14,419,000, representing a decrease of 22.24% from
approximately HK$18,543,000 as compared to the previous year.
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis
FEREREEEBWED T

In the fourth quarter of 2011, nine newly designed electronic cigarette models
across three new product lines were launched, resulting in an increase in turnover of
electronic cigarette from HK$4,063,000 in 2010 to HK$5,363,000 in 201 1. The
Group will continue to focus on research and development of new products and
plans to launch new products in the People's Republic of China (the “PRC") and

overseas markets in the coming year.

The Company's continued creation and acquisition of intellectual property in the
United States and elsewhere around the globe has enabled the Company to
strengthen and expand its strategic partnerships in recent years. As previously
announced, the Group filed two civil actions for infringement of United States Patent
No. 7,832,410 in the United States District Court for the Central District of
California. During 201 |, new patents were granted in Australia, Canada, China, Japan,

Korea, and New Zealand.

Trading of Securities

The Group has further expanded its principal business in securities trading and as a
treasury function invest its surplus cash in the Hong Kong securities market with an
aim to capture future appreciation of share price. However, due to the European
sovereign debt crisis and weak global growth, securities market was highly volatile
and the Hang Seng Index dropped by approximately 20% in 201 |. Market value of
the Group’s securities portfolio had declined and the net loss on the change in fair
value of FAFVPL for the Year amounted to approximately HK$214,408,000 (2010:
net gain on the change in fair value of FAFVPL approximately HK$1,404,000). The
Group incurred realized and unrealized losses from its securities trading and

investments.

The Group will continue to take opportunities to diversify its investment portfolio
and to capture future appreciation of share price. The Group has engaged an
external investment adviser to provide professional advice and analysis to the Board
to assist the Group in making investment decisions. Facing with increasing
uncertainties in the global economy, the management will exercise a cautious

approach in securities trading.
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

TEBREREEENWED N

Property Investment

The Company holds a positive view towards the prospects of the real estate market
in Hong Kong, particularly in commercial and retail sectors. On 4 May 2011, the
Group acquired the entire issued share capital of Central Town Limited for the
interests of a property situated at the Basement, China United Centre, 28 Marble
Road, North Point, Hong Kong. Upon completion of the aforesaid acquisition in
August 2011, a large portion of the said premises has been leased to a Chinese
medicine clinic at a monthly rent of HK$350,000 for a term of 5 years. Attributable
to such rental income, the Group recorded a segment turnover of approximately

HK$ 1,671,000 for the Year (2010: nil).

Research & Development

Ruyan's research and development team recently achieved a major technical
breakthrough advancing the vapor vield of the electronic cigarette. In addition, the
Company has greatly improved the taste and quality of its electronic cigarettes.
Positive responses from distributors of all regions across the PRC and various letters
of intent were received during the trade conference held in Beijing in early August
2011, Newly designed products with the implementation of the new technology

were launched in China in late 201 I.

The Company considers quality and safety as its top concerns. Backed by its
extensive research and development investment program, technical innovation and
quality control, and together with the maturity of its patent portfolio, the Company
is confident it will succeed in driving out inferior product imitations in global markets
in the near future. These efforts will be synchronized to reinforce Ruyan's brand
position as a high-end, trend-setting, and safe smoking alternative that offers

consumers freedom and choice.
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis
FEREREEEBWED T

Intellectual Property

The Company is a leader in the area of electronic cigarette technology and is
developing an extensive portfolio of issued patents and additional pending patent
applications. In 2012, the Company anticipates obtaining additional intellectual
property coverage with the grant of at least one other Electronic Cigarette patent
in the United States, Europe and other key markets. The Company is in the process
of filing national phase applications for a core patent (“Improved Atomizing
Electronic Cigarette” - PCT/CN2010/000125) in countries including the United
States, Canada, Japan, Brazil, Egypt, Israel, and Singapore. The Company also recently
applied for a patent on a novel capacitive sensor, which is an internal component in
an electronic cigarette. The Company continues to actively monitor and enforce its
intellectual property rights, which provide broad protection for its innovative

electronic cigarettes.

As previously announced, the Company's wholly-owned subsidiary, Ruyan Investment
(Holdings) Limited, has filed two civil actions for infringement of United States
Patent No. 7,832,410 in the United States District Court for the Central District of
California against a total of || defendants. Consistent with its strong intellectual
property position, the Company may institute additional litigation based on newly-

acquired rights.

Progress in Overseas Markets

Patents were granted in Australia, Canada, China, Japan, Korea, and New Zealand
during 201 1. The Company is expanding distribution of electronic cigarettes in many
overseas markets. The Company has been approached by new prospective
distributors and is also pursuing new innovative distribution channels in certain
markets. New orders have been received from several European countries for its
new lines and product testing is underway in the United Kingdom, Greece,

Netherlands, Malaysia, and other markets.
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

TEBREREEENWED N

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL ANALYSIS AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 3| December 2011, the Group's net borrowing was approximately
HK$92,342,000 (31 December 2010: HK$9,136,000), consisting of secured bank
borrowings and unsecured other borrowings. Such borrowings were denominated in
Hong Kong dollar, and thus, there was no exposure to fluctuations in exchange rate.
Gearing ratio of the Group increased from approximately 12.53% as at 3|
December 2010 to approximately 39.15% as at 31 December 201 |.This calculation
is based on net borrowings mentioned above and shareholders’ funds of
approximately HK$235,852,000 (31 December 2010: HK$72,890,000). Cash and
bank balances amounted to approximately HK$55,970,000 (31 December 2010:
HK$11,681,000) and total assets were approximately HK$375,323,000 (31
December 2010: HK$129,210,000). Net current assets of the Group on the same
December 2010:
HK$19,799,000). As at 31 December 201 |, inventories amounted to approximately
HK$8,487,000, representing a significant decrease of approximately HK$26,89 1,000

date amounted to approximately HK$52,633,000 (31

when compared with the amount as at 3| December 2010. The Group had no

material capital commitment as at 31 December 201 I.

In order to improve the financial position of the Group, the Company carried out

the following fund raising exercises during the Year:

) Subsequent to the capital reorganization in 2010 which involved, among other
things, share consolidation and capital reduction, the Company allotted and
issued 1,847,245,240 shares on 28 January 2011, by way of rights issue at a
subscription price of HK$0.22 per rights share on the basis of twenty rights
shares for every share held on 7 January 201 1. Net proceeds of approximately

HK$390,650,000 were raised.

m DRAGONITE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 2011 Annual Report

RBEE  WBINMRELER

WZZE——F+ZA=1+—08 KREF{EE
EEAA) 592,342,000 L (ZE—TF+ - A
=+—H :9,136,000/8 L) ' BEAEFIET

EEREAREMES ZERENETH
B HitEER &@JZJ—L o KEE ZEARE

BRELEXBA-T-TFF+-A=+—HH
1253%iai_2——¢+:ﬂz+—a,%@
39.15% ° W HRE L EEFERREES
#7235,852,0008 T (ZE—TF+-A=+—
A : 72,890,000 7T) 5t & - HE RF1T4
#755,970,0008 T (ZE—TF+ A= Jr*
H : 116810008 ©) R EEH B H
375,323,0008 L (ZE—ZEF+-A=+—
A :129,210,000%7T) - AEBRRE B 28
BEFEN52,633,0008 L (ZF—FTF+=
A=+—H 19,799,000 ) - =T ——
¢+:ﬂ:+—a + 17 8 4] /58,487,0008
M-S -TFETA=T—-HZFER
el > 2726 891,000 T - AEER =T ——
F+-A=t+-RIBERERAE-

REEAKEZBBERR - ARBRAFRE
TTMIRERS

1) ZE-TERAEE (PR (EFRE R
& 0 REDRRA) ekig - AARRZ
Z——F-A-+N\BURBESKRHE
Rk H 0228 T B B R BT
1,847,245 240 R R R 17 » =
—F-RtBERE-RERHEZE -+
R MRt 2 BEETHR - FIBHIE
7% %049390,650,000/ 7T



Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis
FEREREEEBWED T

2)  On 30 March 2011, an independent investor subscribed for 18,470,000 shares
of the Company which was issued under general mandate at the subscription
price of HK$0.16 per share.The share subscription was completed on |2 April
2011 and the Company received net proceeds of approximately
HK$2,856,000.

3)  On 4 August 2011, the Company completed a placement of 750,000,000
ordinary shares to independent investors at the placing price of HK$0.1 per
share and the Company received net proceeds of approximately
HK$73,000,000.

These fund raising activities during the Year placed the Group in a far stronger
financial position to equip itself with additional funding for future expansion. The
management is of the view that the Group’s incoming cash flow from various
financing activities can provide working capital and thereby to fund future business
expansion and to pursue business opportunities when they arise. As at 3|
December 2011, the issued share capital of the Company was 2,717,307,502 shares
of HK$0.10 each.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISKS

The Group's operations conducted in the PRC are mainly settled in Renminbi.
However, all corporate activities (i.e. capital reorganization, rights issue, subscription
and placing of new shares) are conducted in Hong Kong dollars. Therefore, the
Group is exposed to fluctuations in foreign exchange rate to a certain extent.
Currently, the Group has no formal hedging policies in place. The Group has not
entered into any foreign currency exchange contracts or derivatives to hedge

against the Group's currency risks.

PROSPECTS FOR THE YEAR 2012 AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN

Electronic Cigarette

The Company will continue to accelerate its marketing efforts. The marketing
strategy of RUYAN products will evolve from a product oriented approach, which
primarily focused on the product itself, to a market oriented approach which will
focus more on the appeal or social status the product provided. The Group will
continue to focus on products launched in late 201 1. In addition, four new products

are planned to be launched in the first half of 2012.
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

TEBREREEENWED N

For 2012, the Company anticipates obtaining additional intellectual property
coverage with the grant of at least one other Electronic Cigarette patent in the
United States, Europe and other key markets and may institute additional litigation
based on the newly-acquired rights. The Company continues to actively monitor and

enforce its rights.

In the PRC, market conditions have changed from previous years. As the objectives
of anti-smoking and tobacco control are now clearly stated in the "12th Five Year
Plan”, we are increasingly optimistic about our future development and the industry.
Looking forward, the Company plans to continue to invest in research and
development and to define the global market for the electronic cigarette. The
Company is confident that by ramping up its research and development, intellectual
property, marketing strategies and regulatory work in concert, the market demand

for RUYAN products will grow rapidly in the near future.

Internationally, during 201 I, the regulatory environment for the electronic cigarette
has become more transparent in leading markets such as the United States and the
United Kingdom. The Company believes this trend will continue and regulators have
agreed in principal to accept the electronic cigarette as a viable alternative to
smoking traditional tobacco cigarettes. Together with its overseas partners, the
Company intends to work closely with regulatory officials in key markets and hopes
to play a role in the creation of guidelines for safety, efficacy, and quality of electronic

cigarettes.

With an improving regulatory environment, strengthened intellectual property
enforcement, and with the implementation of new GMP and ISO manufacturing
standards and other quality assurance processes, the Company believes it has a
bright future and an important role to play in reducing the cost of health care and

improving the quality of life of smokers and those around them.

Pharmaceuticals and health care products

The operating results of pharmaceuticals products are generally not satisfactory due
to increasing material costs and price competition. The Group will attempt to
develop more sales channels and focus on exploring new product lines to broaden

the income stream.

DRAGONITE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 2011 Annual Report

ARAE T —FRESEINBERE
2 EXE BNREMIETSEGES -
BEMEFEZEN  WARERENNG &
MBHBINFAR - RRRBRERBERRITE
HER -

SER  PETSRETHES - ERX[1T=
AIREFIARRERZERR  RAHKS
RITERZERAZDBEE - REHK - AR
AlFt B ER EMEEFEY B E2IRT
% o RRBIREEBMBIE  MHERE T
SRERHREZET  NEERIMHEX
BRAAKRREER -

BETE —T-—FIBMH (WEERR
B) CEERBUMENR - ARABELES
RetE LERBCERRREEFERE
REGEEZBRRR - ARAREBINEHS
HIBMHCEERBEINAE  AEHERY
ETEZRE  MEREERIITHEEE
==

BEEERRIHNE - MAERREMER
MGMPRISOEERENU R EME ERERF
ZEAT ARERGEEMS IR - BHRER
BRARREREERABARCEREES
BEEER -

EmkirfEm
BREMIRERERBTEAR AR
RS I R B 5T MBI A E - AEEHH
BRZESHERE  FIRSKHERR)
ARBWATR -



Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

EFREHREREEENWE D

The Company holds a positive view towards the prospects of the health care
products business. In order to meet the latest GMP standard, the Group plans to
complete the upgrade of the health care products manufacturing facilities in 2012
and that is expected to resume operations in the second half of 2012. In future, the
Group will look for opportunities to expand the product mix of ginseng products

and to invest in other alternative medicine.

DETAILS OF MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES

During the Year, Ruyan International Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, acquired the entire interests in Charm Action Group Limited and its
subsidiary (“Charm Action Group") from an independent third party for future
market development of electronic cigarette in North America at a cash
consideration of HK$10,000,000. The acquisition was duly completed in February
201 1. Taking into account the weak financial position of Charm Action Group, the
Group subsequently disposed of its entire interests in Charm Action Group to an
independent third party at a cash consideration of HK$100 on 31 October 201 so

as to streamline the corporate structure.

On 4 May 2011, the Company through its wholly-owned subsidiary, acquired the
entire issued share capital of and the related shareholder’s loan extended to Central
Town Limited for the interests of a premises at an aggregate consideration of
HK$117,000,000. In August 201 I, the transaction was completed and a large portion
of such premises has been leased to HON Chinese Medicine Company Limited (the
“Clinic") at a monthly rent of HK$350,000 for 5 years. Upon completion, the Group
has entered into an option agreement for the possible acquisition of Apex
Corporate Investments Limited (“Apex”), the holding company of the Clinic. Such
call / put options, stated at fair value, have been disclosed as Derivative Financial
Instruments in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position. The exercise price
of such call / put options is capped at HK$75 million and the minimum is HK$25
million. The Group is under no obligation to further invest in either the Clinic or
Apex pursuant to the said option agreement. However, the Company will keep itself
appraised of any future fund raising opportunities for developing Apex and the

Clinic if and when the Group acquires Apex.

Save as disclosed herein, there were no other material acquisitions or disposals of

subsidiaries during the Year.
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS
At 31 December 2011, the Group pledged its investment property to secure its
bank borrowing of approximately HK$27,342,000.

At 31 December 2011, margin facilities of approximately HK$51,486,000 (31
December 2010: HK$4,809,000) from regulated securities brokers were granted to
the Group which were secured by the Group’s FAFVPL with the carrying amount of
approximately HK$ 124,654,000 (31 December 2010: HK$15,563,000).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2011, the Group did not provide any form of guarantees for any
external party and was not liable to any material legal proceedings of which

provision for contingent liabilities was required.

EMPLOYEE POLICY

As at 31 December 201 I, the Group employed approximately 278 employees in the
PRC and Hong Kong. The remuneration package of the employees is determined
with reference to their performance, experience and their positions, duties and

responsibilities in the Group.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

As announced by the Company on 3 November 201 I, the Company proposed
the capital reorganization (the “Capital Reorganization™) involving (i) every 5
issued shares of par value of HK$0.10 each be consolidated into one
consolidated share of par value of HK$0.50 each; (ii) the nominal value of
each issued consolidated shares be reduced from par value of HK$0.50 each
to par value of HK$0.0l each by cancellation of the paid-up capital to the
extent of HK$0.49 on each issued consolidated share; (iii) rounding down the
total number of consolidated share in the issued share capital of the Company
to the nearest whole number; (iv) the entire amount standing to the credit of
the share premium account of the Company be cancelled; (v) the credit
arising from the capital reduction and share premium cancellation to cancel
the accumulated deficit of the Company with the balance to be transferred to
a distributable reserve account of the Company; and (vi) each of the
authorized but unissued shares of par value of HK$0.10 each will be

subdivided into 10 adjusted shares of par value of HK$0.0l each. The Grand
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EFREHREREEENWE D

Court of the Cayman Islands granted the approval of the aforesaid capital
reduction on 9 March 2012 (Cayman time) and it is expected that the Capital
Reorganization will become effective after 4:00 p.m. on 19 March 2012

(Hong Kong time).

Upon the Capital Reorganization becoming effective, the Company will carry
out a rights issue (the “Rights Issue”) on the basis of two rights shares for
every adjusted share held on the record date at the subscription price of
HK$0.10 per rights share.

unconditional and not terminated by the underwriter, it is expected that the

Assuming the Rights Issue will become

Rights Issue will complete in May 2012 and net proceeds of not less than

approximately HK$108.7 million will be raised thereby.

APPRECIATION
The Board would like to express our gratitude and sincere appreciation to our
business partners, all management and staff members, and shareholders for

their continuous support.

By Order of the Board

Dragonite International Limited

Wong Yin Sen

Chairman

Hong Kong, 16 March 2012
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Corporate Governance Report

TEERRE

The Board is committed to maintaining and ensuring a high standard of corporate
governance. The Board takes the view that a high standard of corporate governance
lays down a solid foundation for enhancing a high degree of accountability and
transparency, maintaining sound and effective internal control, improving the
performance of the Group and safeguarding the interests of the shareholders of the

Company.

The Board has adopted the code provisions set out in the Code of Corporate
Governance Practice (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”). During the year ended 31 December 2011 (the "Year"), the Company has
complied with the Code with the exception of Article A4.1 of the Code. The Board
will continue to review and recommend such steps as appropriate in a timely

manner in order to comply with the requirements of the Code.

THE BOARD

As at 31 December 201 [, the Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”)
comprised Mr. Wong Yin Sen (Chairman), Mr. Gary Drew Douglas (Managing
Director), Mr. Hon Lik (Chief Executive Officer), Ms. Chan Mee Sze and Mr. Lam Suk
Ping as Executive Directors; and Mr. Pang Hong, Mr. Chung Yuk Lun, Mr. Liu Kwong
Sang, Mr. Lam Man Sum, Albert and Mr. Ho Tak Fun as Independent Non-executive
Directors. Mr. Pang Hong has resigned as Independent Non-executive Director of

the Company with effect from 29 February 2012.

The biographies of the Directors are set out in pages 23 to 26 and demonstrate a

diversity of skills, expertise, experience and qualifications.

To the best knowledge of the Company, save for the interests in the shares of the
Company held by Absolute Target Limited, a corporation which is controlled as to
46.25%, 42.5% and 11.25% by Mr.Wong Yin Sen, Mr. Hon Lik and Mr. Wong Hei Lin
respectively, there is no financial, business, family or other material/relevant

relationship between the Directors.

The Board is responsible for the overall strategic development of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) and is also responsible for the financial
performance and internal control policies and business operations of the Group.The
daily operations of the Group are delegated to the management of the Group. All
Directors are provided with updated information relating to corporate governance

and regulatory matters.
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BOARD MEETINGS

The Executive Directors meet on a regular basis to discuss the ordinary business of
the Company. Board meetings were held to discuss the overall development,
operation and financial performance, interim results, annual results and other
business of the Company that require approval of the Board. Reasonable notice has
been given to the Board members to give them an opportunity to attend. All Board
members are provided documentation and other relevant materials covering the
subject matter of board meetings. The Board members are also provided sufficient
information in a timely manner for them to review and consider matters to be
discussed at Board meetings. For those Directors who are not able to attend board
meetings in person, the Company utilizes telephone conferencing for them to

participate.

During the Year, the Board held 42 Board meetings. The following table shows the

attendance of Directors at Board meetings during the Year:

Name of Director Attendance
Executive Directors
WongYin Sen (Chairman) 35/42
Gary Drew Douglas

(Managing Director) (appointed on 24 October 201 1) 6/42
Hon Lik

(Chief Executive Officer) 30/42
Au Yeung Kai Chor (resigned on 25 October 201 1) 29142
Chan Mee Sze (appointed on || April 201 1) 27142
Ching Yuen Man, Angela (resigned on 25 October 201 1) 33/42
Lam Suk Ping (appointed on | June 2011) 23/42
Wong Hei Lin (resigned on 7 July 2011) 0/42
Non-executive Directors
Frank H. Miu (resigned on 7 July 2011) 6142
Manfred A. Haussler (resigned on | April 2011) 0/42
Independent non-executive Directors
Chung Yuk Lun 3/42
Ho Tak Fun (appointed on | November 201 1) 0/42
Lam Man Sum, Albert 7142
Liu Kwong Sang 8/42
Pang Hong (resigned on 29 February 2012) 8/42
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix |0 of the Listing Rules.
Following enquiries with the Directors, the Company has received confirmation
from each of the Director confirming that he or she has complied with the required

standard of dealings set out in the Model Code for the Year.

SEGREGATION OF DUTIES

The positions of the Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer are
held by separate individuals with a view to maintain an effective segregation of
duties in respect of the management of the Board and the day-to-day management
of the Group's business. The Chairman is responsible for the management of the
Board. The Managing Director is responsible for the implementation of the overall
strategy of the Group and the Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the Group’s

day-to-day operations.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

The Independent Non-executive Directors bring independent judgment to the
Board. The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors written confirmations of their independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. Based upon said confirmations, the Board considers that all the
independent non-executive Directors have met the qualifications of Rule 3.13 of the

Listing Rules for the Year

APPOINTMENTS AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Directors were appointed in accordance with their qualifications and
experience to ensure they are competent to perform their duties and protect the
interests of the stakeholders. Each newly appointed Director receives a
comprehensive and formal introduction to ensure that he/she has an understanding
of the Group's business and operations, his/her responsibilities and obligations under

the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements, and the Model Code.

During the Year, all Directors discharged their duties in a dedicated, diligent and
proactive manner with reasonable prudence. They have executed their duties in
accordance with statutory requirements, the articles of association of the Company
(the “Articles of Association™) and the Listing Rules. All Directors have exercised
due care in monitoring corporate matters of the Company and provided sufficient

time and attention to all significant issues of Group.
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Article A4.1 of the Code stipulates that non-executive Directors shall be appointed
for a specific term and be subject to re-election. The Non-executive Directors of the
Company have not appointed for a specific term of office, which constitutes a
deviation from A4.1 of the Code. However, all non-executive Directors are subject
to retirement by rotation at the annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the Articles of Association. The Board therefore considers that
sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate

governance practices are no less exacting than those of the Code.

According to the provisions of the Articles of Association and the Listing Rules, any
Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the
next following general meeting of the Company, and in the case of an addition to
the existing Board, until the next following annual general meeting of the Company.
Furthermore, each Director, including those appointed for a specific term or holding
office as Chairman and/or Managing Director, is subject to retirement by rotation at

least once every three years.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Board considers the experience, qualification, general market conditions and
composition of the Board in selecting and recommending candidates as Directors of

the Company.

During the Year, the Company did not have a nomination committee for the
appointment of Directors. The Board is empowered however under the Company's
Articles of Association to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual
vacancy on the Board or as an addition to the existing Board. In March 2012, the
Company established a Nomination Committee comprised of five members: Mr. Lam
Man Sun, Albert (Chairman of the Nomination Committee), Mr. Gary Drew Douglas,
Mr. Chung Yuk Lun, Mr. Liu Kwong Sang and Mr. Ho Tak Fun.

Detailed information relating to the educational and professional qualifications and
relevant work experience were provided at the board meeting to approve the
proposed appointment of new Directors. The criteria for selecting Directors are
mainly based on candidate's qualifications, experience, professional knowledge, ethics
and integrity. During the Year, four board meetings were held to approve the
appointments of Ms. Chan Mee Sze, Mr. Lam Suk Ping, Mr. Gary Drew Douglas and
Mr. Ho Tak Fun each respectively.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

In determining the remuneration of Directors and senior management, the
Company took into account (i) prevailing market conditions; (ii) time commitment
required; (iii) duties and responsibilities; (iv) contribution to the Group; (v)
qualifications and (vi) experience, so as to ensure sufficient remuneration levels to

attract and retain high caliber personnel without paying excessively.
THE COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) was established in
2001 and the Company adopted written terms of reference for the Audit
Committee. As at 31 December 2011, the Audit Committee was comprised of five

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Chung Yuk Lun (Chairman)

Mr. Ho Tak Fun

Mr. Lam Man Sum, Albert

Mr. Liu Kwong Sang

Mr. Pang Hong (resigned on 29 February 2012)

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include, among other things, review and
supervision of the financial reporting process and the Company's internal control
policies and procedures. The Audit Committee also acts as the communication
bridge between the Board and the external auditors in relation to the planning and
scope of audit work.The appointment of members to the Audit Committee is based
on member’s breadth of experience in various commercial sectors and professional

knowledge of financial reporting and general management.

The Audit Committee met twice during the Year to review the interim and annual
results of the Group and to review internal control issues. The attendance records

of the meetings are shown below.
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Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration Committee”)
was established in 2005 and the Company adopted written terms of reference for
the Remuneration Committee. As at 31 December 2011, the Remuneration

Committee was comprised of five Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Pang Hong (Chairman)(resigned on 29 February 2012)

Mr. Chung Yuk Lun (Chairman with effect from 29 February 2012)

Mr. Ho Tak Fun
Mr. Lam Man Sum, Albert
Mr. Liu Kwong Sang

Upon the resignation of Mr. Pang Hong on 29 February 2012, Mr. Chung Yuk Lun
assumed the position of chairman of the Remuneration Committee. The duties of the
Remuneration Committee include, among other things, making recommendations on
the Company's remuneration policy for Directors and senior management as well as

evaluating and submitting recommendations on other employee benefits.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held two meetings. The attendance
record of the meetings are shown below.

Attendance record

The following table shows the attendance of Directors at meetings of the Audit

Committee and the Remuneration Committee during the Year:
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS

The annual general meeting is the principal forum for formal dialogue with
shareholders of the Company and in which the Board members are available to
answer questions regarding proposed resolutions. Individual resolutions were
stipulated at the general meetings for each substantial issue and the Board members

were available to answer questions raised by the shareholders.

Information of the Group was also disseminated to shareholders of the Company

and investors as follows:

. Delivery of the interim reports and annual reports to all shareholders of the

Company and other interested parties;

*  Publication of announcements on the interim results and annual results on the
website of the Stock Exchange and the website of the Company; and issue and
publication of other announcements and shareholders’ circulars in accordance

with the continuing disclosure obligation under the Listing Rules; and

*  Price sensitive information is disclosed to the public by way of announcement

as required by the Listing Rules.

Enquiries and suggestions from shareholders of the Company or investors are

welcome through the following channels:

* by mail to the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at Room
[101, I'lth Floor, China United Centre, 28 Marble Road, North Point, Hong
Kong

* by telephone at telephone number (852) 3198 0688
* by fax at fax number (852) 2579 0055

* by email at general@dragonite329.com.hk
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for overseeing the preparation of
the financial statements of the Group and believe these statements give a true and
fair view of the Group's affairs and its results. The Directors are also responsible for
the timely publication of the financial statements of the Group and to ensure they
are prepared in accordance with statutory requirements and applicable financial
reporting standards. The Directors are also committed to making appropriate
announcements in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules, and to
disclose all information necessary for shareholders of the Company to assess the

financial performance and other aspects of the Company.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu was appointed as the external auditor of the Group for
the Year and will continue as such until the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company. The annual consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
Year have been audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. The auditors’ responsibilities
for the Group's financial statements are set out in the Independent Auditor's Report

on pages 35 to 36 of the Company's 201 | Annual Report.

The Audit Committee is responsible for evaluating the external auditors of the

Group, including but not limited to their independence and objectivity.

For the Year, the fees of the external auditors of the Group for audit services
amounted to HK$ 1,600,000 and for non-audit services amounted to approxmiately
HK$1,671,000.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for ensuring that an adequate system of internal control is
maintained within the Group, and for reviewing its effectiveness through the Audit
Committee. The internal control systems are designed to meet the Group's
particular needs and the risks to which it is exposed, and by their nature can only
provide reasonable, but not absolute assurance against misstatement or loss and to
manage, but not to eliminate, risks of failure in achieving the Group’s objectives.
Practicable and effective control systems and procedures have been implemented by
the Group to enhance internal control on an ongoing basis. The Board, through the
Audit Committee, has conducted reviews of the effectiveness and the adequacy of

the Group's system of internal control.
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Corporate Governance Report
EXER|E

During the Year, based on the evaluations made by the Audit Committee, the Board
was satisfied that nothing has come to its attention to cause the Board to believe
that the system of internal control is inadequate; and there is an ongoing process to

identify, evaluate and manage significant risks encountered by the Group.

GOING CONCERN

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge, information and belief
and having made all reasonable enquiries, they are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cause significant doubt upon
the Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern. The Board therefore continues
to adopt the going concern approach in preparing the financial statements for the

Year.

On behalf of the Board

Dragonite International Limited

Gary Drew Douglas

Managing Director

Hong Kong, 16 March 2012
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Directors and Senior Management Profile

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr.Wong Yin Sen, aged 59, is one of the co-founders and currently the Chairman
and President of the Group. Mr.Wong is familiar with commercial, political and social
affairs in the PRC and has over 26 years of experience managing enterprises in the
People’s Republic of China (the "PRC"). After settling down in Hong Kong in 1992,
he established and invested in the Group. Mr. Wong has accumulated abundant
knowledge in the medical and health care product industry and has extensive

experience in enterprise management.

Mr. Gary Drew Douglas, aged 62, is the managing Director of the Company and
responsible for the electronic cigarette business of the Group. Mr. Douglas holds a
Master's Degree in Business Administration from the University of Santa Clara, USA.
Mr. Douglas has over 20 years of professional experience in general management,
consumer electronics, IT business, project management and software, and
commercial and retail banking in Japan and the USA. Mr. Douglas is also fluent in
Japanese. He is currently an independent non-executive director of Freeman
Financial Corporation Limited and Willie International Holdings Limited, both listed
on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange"). Mr. Douglas was an independent non-executive director of Radford
Capital Investment Limited, a company listed on the main board of the Stock

Exchange during the period from 30 June 2011 to 20 October 201 |.

Mr. Hon Lik, aged 56, is a senior pharmacist, a co-founder and currently Chief
Executive Officer of the Group. Mr. Hon graduated from Liaoning College of
Traditional Chinese Medicine in 1982 and started his career with Liaoning Academy
of Traditional Chinese Medicine in the same year. Mr. Hon was promoted to the
position of vice superintendent of Liaoning Academy of Traditional Chinese Medicine
in 1990, and was responsible for the company’s technology development. Mr. Hon
has approximately 27 years of experience in the medical field and invented and
patented the technology used in Chenlong Baoling Longevity Ginseng and electronic

cigarette products.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile

EERSREEAE[N

Ms. Chan Mee Sze, aged 37, is an executive Director and Company Secretary of the
Company. Ms. Chan holds a Bachelor's Degree in Laws from University of London
and a Master’'s Degree in Business Administration from University of Dundee. She is
also an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of Company Secretaries with
Practitioner's Endorsement and an associate member of The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators. She has over |12 years of experience in corporate

secretaryship and corporate finance.

Mr. Lam Suk Ping, aged 54, is an executive Director of the Company and he joined
the Group in 2011 to oversee the accounts department. Mr. Lam holds a Master's
Degree in Business Administration from the University of Hull, the United Kingdom.
He has over 30 years of experience in auditing, finance and accounting, investment
and business management. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Lam was an executive
director of Mascotte Holdings Limited, a company listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange during the period from 7 April 2008 to 27 April 201 |. He was also
an independent non-executive director of Radford Capital Investment Limited, a
company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange during the period from 30
June 2011 to 20 October 201 I.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chung Yuk Lun, aged 51, is an independent non-executive Director of the
Company. He is a fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and an Associate Chartered Accountants (England and Wales). Mr.
Chung has over 22 years' experience in finance and project investment. He is
currently an executive director of Radford Capital Investment Limited and Ming Fung
Jewellery Group Limited, an independent non-executive director of Heritage
International Holdings Limited and Forefront Group Limited, all of which are

companies listed on the Stock Exchange.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile

Mr. Liu Kwong Sang, aged 50, is an independent non-executive Director of the
Company. He has been practising as a certified public accountant in Hong Kong with
more than 20 years' experience. He graduated with honours from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University with a Bachelor's Degree in accountancy and obtained the
Master's Degree in Business Administration from the University of Lincoln, the
United Kingdom. Mr. Liu is an associate member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales, a fellow member of The Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants, a fellow member of the Institute of Financial
Accountants, the United Kingdom and a fellow member of the National Institute of
Accountants, Australia. He is also a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, a fellow member of the Taxation Institute of Hong
Kong and a fellow member of the Society of Registered Financial Planners. Mr. Liu
acts as an independent non-executive director of Polytec Asset Holdings Limited
and China Railsmedia Corporation Limited, securities of both are listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange, and of abc Multiactive Ltd whose securities are listed
on the GEM board of the Stock Exchange and of Pacific CMA, Inc. whose securities

were previously listed on the American Stock Exchange.

Mr. Lam Man Sum,Albert, aged 56, is an independent non-executive Director of the
Company. He is a fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
member of the Hong Kong Securities Institute, Society of Chinese Accountants and
Auditors and Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. Mr. Lam holds a Bachelor's Degree in
Arts (Economics) from the University of Manchester, United Kingdom. He is
currently an independent non-executive director of Junefield Department Store
Group Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange. He had been
the proprietor of Albert Lam & Co. CPA from 1993 to 2007.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile

EERSREEAE[N

Mr. Ho Tak Fun, aged 58, is an independent non-executive Director of the Company.
He received a Bachelor's Degree in Business Administration, Marketing from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong and a Master's Degree in Science, Information
Systems from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Mr. Ho is a seasoned retail
executive with profound experience in launching new businesses, strategic planning,
business development and operations in both the PRC and Hong Kong retail
markets. He also has extensive knowledge in marketing, merchandising, distribution
and promotion of consumer products and mass merchandise. Mr. Ho was an
executive director of Tack Fiori International Group Limited, a company listed on the
main board of the Stock Exchange during the period from 5 August 2011 to 3|
October 201 1.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Scott Fraser, is the Vice President of a subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Fraser
holds a Master's Degree in Business Administration from University California at
Berkeley, Haas School of Business. He has over 22 years of work experience in sales
and marketing in various multinational corporations in the PRC and the United
States, including being the marketing manager in Intel China Limited and being the
retail channel marketing manager in Motorola Asia/ Pacific Limited. He is currently
responsible for the Group's international market and sales development. He joined
the Group in 2007.
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The directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated financial

statements for the year ended 3| December 201 | (the “Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal activities of the
Company's principal subsidiaries are set out in note | to the consolidated financial

statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the
Year are set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page

37.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the Year.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group during the

Year are set out in note |6 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements during the Year in the Company's share capital are set out in

note 3| to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
The Company's reserves available for distributions to shareholders as at 3|
December 2011 comprised the share premium, contributed surplus less

accumulated losses with a net aggregate amount of approximately HK$210,047,000
(2010: HK$173,870,000).
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Directors’ Report

ESERES

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the Year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr.Wong Yin Sen
Mr. Gary Drew Douglas

Mr. Hon Lik
Mr.Wong Hei Lin

Ms. Ching Yuen Man, Angela

Mr. AuYeung Kai Chor

Ms. Chan Mee Sze

Mr. Lam Suk Ping

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Frank H. Miu

Mr. Manfred A. Haussler

(appointed on 24 October 201 1)

(resigned on 7 July 201 1)

(resigned on 25 October 201 1)

(resigned on 25 October 201 1)

(appointed on || April 201 1)

(appointed on | June 2011)

(resigned on 7 July 201 1)

(resigned on | April 2011)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Pang Hong

Mr. Chung Yuk Lun

Mr. Liu Kwong Sang

Mr. Lam Man Sum, Albert
Mr. Ho Tak Fun

(resigned on 29 February 2012)

(appointed on | November 201 1)
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In accordance with Article 87 of the Company's Articles of Association, Mr. Wong
Yin Sen, Mr. Hon Lik and Mr. Chung Yuk Lun shall retire and, being eligible, offer

themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

In accordance with Article 86 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr. Gary
Drew Douglas, Mr Lam Suk Ping and Mr. Ho Tak Fun shall be eligible for re-election

at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The non-executive directors have no specific term of office but are subject to
retirement by rotation, and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election, in

accordance with the Company's Articles of Association.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
None of the directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by the Group within one

year without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITION IN SHARES AND UNDERLING SHARES

As at 31 December 2011, the interests and short positions of the directors and the
chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debt securities
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries or associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “"SFO”")) which are
required (i) to be notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange") pursuant to Part XV of the SFO (including interests
or short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO); or (i) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or (iii) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)

to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange were as follows:-
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Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying shares of the Company as at 31
December 201 I

Number of

Number of issued

underlying shares in
respect of the
options granted
under the

share option

scheme of

the Company

Approximate
percentage

of the issued
share capital of

ordinary shares of BEAAT the Company
the Company ERETE VAN
Name of Director Capacity AATCET REBRE BRITREAZ
Esns L) EERYE HEROHE BHEIH
(B 1)
(Note 1)
Mr.WongYin Sen Beneficial owner 260,266 0.01%
IERELE ESHBA
Interest of controlled corporation 167,265,000 6.16%
SRk B (Note 2)
(Kfx 2)
Mr. Hon Lik Beneficial owner 260,266 0.01%
BhEAE ESHEBA
Interest of controlled corporation 167,265,000 6.16%
REHEE R (Note 2)
(H1 % 2)
Mr. Pang Hong (Note 3) Beneficial owner 173513 0.01%
REVB ST A& (H17£3) EsBAA
Notes: P&t -
I. Details of share option scheme of the Company are disclosed in note 32 to the 1. ARAIBBEE S 2 FERR A M B RAME

32 -

consolidated financial statements.

HAbsolute Target Limited BB AR AR
7]167,265,0000 2 #% « TERELE - B
SHERTHFRED RIHEEAbsolute Target
Limited 46.25% ~ 42.5% & 11.25%%# 2 °

2. These represent the interests in the 167,265,000 shares of the Company directly held 2.
by Absolute Target Limited which is controlled as to 46.25%, 42.5% and | 1.25% by Mr
Wong Yin Sen, Mr. Hon Lik and Mr.Wong Hei Lin respectively.

BRAER - E-—-F-_A-tHhBHEIAR
ABUENITES

3. Mr. Pang Hong resigned as an independent non-executive director of the Company 3.
with effect from 29 February 2012.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, none of the directors and chief
executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debt securities of the Company or any of its subsidiaries or
associated corporations that are required to be recorded pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, or otherwise notified to the Company or the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY

Save as disclosed in note 32 to the financial statements headed “Share Based
Payments”, at no time during the Year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debt securities (including
debentures) of, the Company or any associated corporations, and none of the
directors of the Company, or their spouses or children under age of 18, had any
right to subscribe for the shares or debt securities of the Company or had exercised

any such right during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

There was no contract of significance to which the Company, its holding company,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end

of the Year or at any time during the Year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as is known to directors of the Company, as at 31 December 2011, the
persons or companies (other than directors or chief executive of the Company)
who had interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company which fall to be disclosed to the Company under Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register of substantial shareholders required to be kept

by the Company under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:
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ESERES

Long positions in the ordinary shares of the Company as at 3|1 December 201 I:

Name Capacity
nE/ R 51

Absolute Target Limited (Note /) Beneficial owner
(Kt 1) ERBEAA
Note:

I. According to the filings made under the SFO, Absolute Target Limited is controlled as to
46.25% by Mr.Wong Yin Sen, 42.50% by Mr. Hon Lik and | 1.25% by Mr. Wong Hei Lin.
Both Mr-Wong Yin Sen and Mr. Hon Lik are executive directors of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, no person, other than the
directors of the Company, whose interests are set out herein this report, had
registered an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the

Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The existing share option scheme was adopted by the Company on 30 May 2003.
Details and the movement of the share option scheme of the Company are
disclosed in “Share-based Payments” in note 32 to the consolidated financial

statements.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS OR OTHER SIMILAR RIGHTS

Movements in share option scheme and convertible note during the Year are set out
in notes 32 and 30 to the consolidated financial statements respectively. Save for the
outstanding share options as set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Company has no other outstanding convertible securities, options or

similar rights in issue as at 3| December 201 .

BORROWINGS
Details of the interest-bearing borrowings of the Group are set out in note 29 to

the consolidated financial statements.
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RETIREMENT SCHEME

The Group provides a defined contribution retirement scheme under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “Scheme"”) in Hong Kong. Under the
Scheme, employer and employees are each required to make contributions to the
scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of HK$20,000 and a minimum level of relevant income of

HK$6,500 for the employees' contribution.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company and the Group was entered into or

existed during the Year

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive directors,
an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers all of the independent non-executive directors are

independent.

EMOLUMENT POLICY
The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the remuneration
committee of the Company (the “Remuneration Committee”) on the basis of their

merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are recommended by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results,
individual performance, time, commitment, duties and responsibilities, contribution to
the Group, comparable market statistics and prevailing marketing practice and

trends.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's Articles of
Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to

offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.
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Directors’ Report

ESERES

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS
During the Year, the largest supplier of the Group by itself and together with the
next four suppliers accounted for about 21.6% and 39.9%, respectively, of the

Group's purchases.

During the Year, the five largest customers of the Group accounted for less than

47.6% of the Group's turnover.

At no time during the Year did a director, an associate of a director of a shareholder
of the Company (which to the knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of
the Company's share capital) have an interest in any of the Group's five largest

suppliers.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION
The related party transaction set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements did not fall within the definition of connected transaction or continuing

connected transaction under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES
During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold

or redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT
Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of its directors, as at the date of this report, the Company has

maintained sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for each of the three years
ended 31 December 2011 were audited by Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. A
resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the

Company.

On behalf of the Board

Dragonite International Limited

Wong Yin Sen
Chairman
Hong Kong, 16 March 2012
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Independent Auditor’s Report

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF DRAGONITE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Dragonite International
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
"Group") set out on pages 37 to 145, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2011, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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DRAGONITE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Independent Auditor’s Report
R - EIE

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity's preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated

financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group as at 3| December 2011 and of the Group's loss and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the

disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong

I6 March 2012
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SEZHEHWER

For the year ended 3| December 201 | HZZE——F+-A=+—RHILFE

NOTES 2011 2010
P EE —E-—-F —E-FF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TET
Turnover ]
Sales of goods HEEM 19,878 21,786
Less: Cost of goods sold B HERA (42,854) (84,615)
(22,976) (62,829)
Change in fair value of financial assets BATEFABRZ
at fair value through profit or loss TRMEEZATFER (214,408) 1,404
Dividend income AR B WA 2,806 —
Rental income E-C'ON 1,671 —
(232,907) (61,425)
Other income HAA 3,119 795
Other gains and losses Hfth 2 & 8 (4,986) (9,750)
Distribution costs RIHE R (14,005) (40,708)
Administrative expenses BN (47,536) (43,705)
Other expenses HoAth 3% (4,565) (82,004)
(Loss) gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENBLR (BE) ks 34 (9.967) 21,903
Finance costs HER 9 (2,635) (17,.945)
Loss before tax FiAl g8 (313,482) (232,839)
Income tax expense PREH i 10 (599) (492)
Loss for the year AFEEEE [ (314,081) (233331)
Other comprehensive income ﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁ”ﬁl*
Reclassification adjustment for exchange R & BN EBE
difference upon disposal of foreign operation EHER L ENDERE — (368)
Exchange differences arising on translation MERZIERELY
to presentation currency N =5 767 6719
Other comprehensive income for the year AEZHM2E RS 767 6,351
Total comprehensive expense for the year AFEE2HMAS B (313,314) (226,980)
(Restated)
(#=51)
Loss per share BRESE
Basic and diluted EARREE 15 HK (14.51) 4L HK (57.04) L
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

A M BARR R

At 31 December 201 | R—E——F+-fA=+—H

NOTES 2011 2010
s —g--5  -—T-T%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FiERT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment E R E L] 16 25,799 30413
Investment property REWME 17 145,000 —
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 18 — —
Financial assets at fair value through BATEFSABRZ
profit or loss EREE 19 9,730 20,000
Intangible assets BVEE 20 — —
Prepaid lease payments ENHEERE 21 2,690 2,678
183,219 53,091
Current assets MEEE
Inventories e 22 8,487 35,378
Financial assets at fair value through BRAFEFABRZ
profit or loss EREE 19 114,924 15563
Trade receivables EUE 5 8RR 23 4,184 5,082
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables Be  BRNRER
it Y AR TR 24 6,878 5736
Taxation recoverable EEEL 1,579 2,600
Prepaid lease payments ERMEERE 21 82 79
Bank balances and cash RITEFRRE 26 55,970 11,681
192,104 76,119
Current liabilities REAE
Trade payables JERTE ZERIE 27 6,272 4,647
Accruals and other payables JEETRIEREMEMNARIE 28 33,665 41,269
Derivative financial instruments TEERIA 25 5,689 377
Borrowings RN 29 92,342 5,000
Convertible bonds AR ES 30 — 4,136
Taxation payable 118 1,503 891
139,471 56,320
Net current assets MENVEEHRE 52,633 19,799
Total assets less current liabilities BEERTEBERE 235,852 72,890
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

A BN R

At 31 December 201 | R=E——E+-F=+—H

NOTES 2011 2010
Gk —g--5  -T-%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TET

Capital and reserves BARK#E
Share capital LN 31 271,731 9,236
Reserves G (35,879) 63,654
Equity attributable to owners of the Company AARHEE NEIERR 235,852 72,890

The consolidated financial statements on pages 37 to 145 were approved and B RSBV B AMBREN —"T——F=

ATRBREZSHERFENE AT

authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 16 March 2012 and are signed on

its behalf by: EERREE
EE EF
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MEEmEER

For the year ended 3| December 201 | BZ=E——F+ZA=+—HILFE

Attributable

Non- to owners

Share Share ~ distributable of the

Share  premium Shareholders’  Translation option reserves Merger Special Accumulated  Company
capital account  contribution reserve resere  FEAR reserves reserves losses RAFHAA

BE BhEEE BRLE  EARE BRERE BE GHEE HHERE ZEER EGER
HSO00  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO000  HKSO0D  HKS00D  HKSO0D  HKSO0D  HK$00
AL T TEr  TEn  TEn  TEn  TEr  TEn  TEnr  TEn

(note a) (note b) (note d) (note ¢)
(Kfita) (Wao)  (ad (Wi

At | January 2010 RZE-F5-F-H 151336 1182410 21,780 86,873 9612 U137 (1016738) 3142 (418945) 4407
Loss for the year TEEEE — — — — — — — — B3R}
Other comprehensive AEREMZEYG

income for the year — — — 6,351 — — — — — 6,351
Total comprehensive income ~ AFE2ENRDE

for the year — — — 6351 — — — —  (23331)  (26%0)
Issue of new shares EChEl BM — — - — — - — — BN
Issue of new shares RERTAREF TR

upon conversion of

convertible bonds 71,891 10,400 — — - — — - — 82,291
Issue of new shares ROREREAETFR

upon exercise

of share options 1,770 26582 — — (11,984) — — - — 44,368
Issue of new shares REREETITR

upon rights issue 83,180 — — — — — — — — 83,180
Capital Reorganisation EXEH (360213) - — — - — — - 360213 —
Recognition of equity-settled  BRAEREELNRH A

share-based payments LS MATES - - - - 12551 - - - - 12531
At 31 December 2010 RZZ-ZE+-A=1-H 923 121939 21,780 9324 10,180 U7 (1016738) 3142 (292063) 72890
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REERBER

For the year ended 3| December 201 | HZZE——F+-A=+—RHILFE

Attributable

Non- to owners

Share Share  distrioutable of the

Share  premium Shareholders'  Translation option reserves Merger Special - Accumulated  Company
capital account  contribution reserve resere AR reserves reserves losses AR FEBA

R BOEEE BRAE  ENRE BRERS FE AHER FIRG ZRER  EOER
HK$000  HKFO000  HKE000  HKFOO0  HKS000  HK$OO0  HK$000  HK$O000  HK$000  HK$000
TR TER  TEn  TER TR TEn  TER  TET  TEn  TEn

(note a) (note b) (note d) (note ¢)

(Hita) (Witb)  (Wid) (Mo

At | January 2011 RZZ-—£-A-H

Loss for the year TEERE
Other comprehensive TEREMZENS

income for the year

Total comprehensive TER2ENELE

income for the year

Issue of new shares RERGEETFR
upon rights issue
Issue of new shares REBEETIR
upon subscription
Issue of new shares R ERERR TR

upon exercise of

share options

Issue of new shares REREETIR
upon placing

Transaction costs EiREL 2 ER
attributable to

issue of shares

Recognition of equitysettled  BRLNEREELINER A
share-based payments EWAR

Lapse of share options BRELT

At 31 December 201 | RZE-——FTZA=1-F
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MEEmEER

For the year ended 3| December 201 | BZ=E——F+ZA=+—HILFE

Notes: B aE -

(a)  Shareholders’ contribution represents the amounts contributed by shareholders of (a) MR HEERuyan Investment (Holdings)
Ruyan Investment (Holdings) Limited (“RIHL). Limited ([RIHL]) Z iR HE £ %8 -

(b)  The non-distributable reserve represents statutory reserves appropriated from profit (b) FHEARFEEEARRZPEMERARET
after tax of the Company's PRC subsidiary under the PRC laws and regulations. BUERRERMBRH AR R EY 2 EER
=

() The special reserve of the Group represents reserve arising pursuant to Group (c) ARBEZEFBEEEEER_TTTF—
Reorganisation on the basis that the Group Reorganisation had been effected on | A-BERRRAEESHEEEZREE -
January 2000.

(d)  The merger reserve represents (i) the share capital of RIHL (ii) the carrying amount of (d) AGHRHEEEORHURE (i) EEGIEA LR

equity interest in RIHL held by the non-controlling parties and (iii) the fair value of the A ZRIHLIE 2 BRE (& « J (iif) 3t W B RIHL
considerations paid for acquisition of RIHL. TRREBZATME -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n‘l-ﬁ IE%/)H:E'IEE

For the year ended 3| December 201 | HZZE——F+-A=+—RHILFE

2011 2010
—E-—F —F-2F
HK$°000 HK$'000
THERT TET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REED
Loss before tax BR 25 Al &5 48 (313,482) (232,839)
Adjustments for: ATHEBELRE
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment mE - BERRBINE 6,015 9,163
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments ENHETIEE 88 85
Amortisation of intangible assets B EESH = 753
Allowance for inventory obsolescence REFERE 31,796 65,399
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts REREMR 1,473 37,406
Share-based payment expense VAR R AT K2 X 783 12,552
Finance costs %8 2,635 17,945
Change in fair value of derivative eI AN T EES
financial instruments (958) 912)
Change in fair value of financial assets EEEATFEFABEZ
designated at fair value through profit or loss EREEZ N TEE 10,295 (9,700)
Interest income FEHA (8) (13)
Impairment loss on property, mE - BEEEEZ
plant and equipment HEEE — 9,328
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, HEME  BERREZ
plant and equipment (lha) B8 (65) 1,334
Loss (gain) on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBLARZEE (M=) 9,967 (21,903)
Change in fair value of investment property REWMEZ N T EE 6,009 —
Operating cash flows before movements LEEREDRICKE
in working capital RBeang (245,452) (111,402)
(Increase) decrease in inventories FE (&m R (4,235) 2,224
(Increase) decrease in trade receivables EWE SR\ (380) " (505) 31,734
(Increase) decrease in deposits, prepayments BEe  BAREREMD
and other receivable FEMERTE (18h0) HA (703) 15,226
Increase in held-for-trading investments BFEBERBR ZREEN (94,111) (I1,113)
Increase (decrease) in trade payables FERE SIREE M () 1,537 (557)
(Decrease) increase in accruals and JEET TR R H A
other payables FERTERIE ORA) Em (9,224) 24,789
Cash used in operations KREmARE (352,693) (49,099)
Interest received 2 A B 8 13
Interest paid ERHME — (1,146)
PRC income tax refunded (paid) BREFEMER (E8) 1,034 (119)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES REZHMARES TR (351,651) (50,351)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mERERER

For the year ended 3| December 201 | BZ=E——F+ZA=+—HILFE

NOTES 2011 2010
GE: —g--5  —T-TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FRR FHT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
Proceeds on disposal of property, HEDNE  BEREE
plant and equipment FTi8 518 65 2,078
Proceeds on disposal of financial assets HEEERATEF ABR
designated at fair value through profit or loss ZERMEEMRBIA 24,750 —
Purchase of financial assets designated at BABTEATEFAERE
fair value through profit or loss LEMEE (30,025) (14,750)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BAYE - BB R&E (405) (3,378)
Net cash outflow arising on disposal HEMBLRRZRE M FEE
of subsidiaries 34 — (389)
Acquisition of subsidiaries W BE Bt B A ) 34 (10,000) —
Acquisition of assets and liabilities WEEERGE 33 (116,943) —
Repayments from a shareholder IRER (BRI = 127
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETBFMARESFH (132,558) (16,312)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEH
New other borrowings raised H At 597 455 £ K 140,000 130,000
Interest paid on borrowings fERENFE (1,771) (2,402)
Repayment of other borrowings EEEMER (80,677) (125,000)
Redemption of convertible bonds f& [l FI R AR (B 27 (5,000) (153,681)
Proceeds from issue of convertible bonds BRI MRER 2 G5B = 75,000
Issue of new shares BITH R 486,030 160,820
Expenses of issue of shares BITRGD 2R (10,537) —
Repayment to a shareholder ERRRRIE = (10,000)
Repayment to a non-controlling BEARAFERREKIE
shareholder of the Company — (21,011)
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEZHMERETE 528,045 53,726
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH ReERAESEEREM
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (R2) =& 43,836 (12,937)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS EYzRERREEEER
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 11,681 24,117
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXSBHs¥E
RATE CHANGES 453 501
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ERZAERALEEERE
AT END OF THE YEAR, REPRESENTED METEERES
BY BANK BALANCES AND CASH 55,970 [1,681
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | HZZE——F+-A=+—RHILFE

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered
office and principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in

"Corporate Information” of the annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in production and sales of a series of health care products,
pharmaceutical products, Ruyan atomizing cigarettes, securities trading and

investments and property investment in Hong Kong.

In prior years, the Company's functional currency was Renminbi (“RMB").
During the year, the directors had re-evaluated the underlying investment
activities and strategy of the Company and have determined that the functional
currency of the Company changed from RMB to Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”).
The effects of the change of the functional currency of the Company had been

accounted for prospectively during the year.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements, the
Group adopted HKD as its presentation currency for the convenience of the
readers. The directors consider HKD can provide more meaningful information

to the Company's shareholders.

—REH
AATRBERBEMRTIAEREA
BAT  ARHREBBARBHAAR
AT (B 2H)) Lo KRR 2 M
SR REES EHBERAEHA
AR RRE -

ARBR—FRREZRRAR - EMEL
AIZEIREBREERBE - RIIRE
Em BEERRNERLE BFE
BERRERRBERBETOERRE -

RBEFE  FRFAZHEEER/AR
BARE]) -RAFE EFEEHN
HEARAERREETY LR BE
RARBZNEEBMARBRZRGHE
(BT - RRANEEREG 2 ¥
EERFRNENARK -

REJNGEMBHRRME  RHEEE
HE FAEERBAETEREZINE
%o EZRRELARARARREMR
BEEECZEH -
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DRAGONITE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | BZ=E——F+ZA=+—HILFE

2.  APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and revised
standards, amendments and interpretations (“new and revised HKFRSs") issued

by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA").

Amendments to HKFRSs

BEMBREEA ZEF]

HKAS 24 (as revised in 2009)

BEGHENE 245 (ZTTNFLKER)

Amendments to HK(IFRIC) - INT 14

BE (AR BRERERES)
—REFE 145 2B

HK(IFRIC) - INT 19

BE (AR BRERERZES)
—REF19%

The adoption of the new and revised HKFRSs has had no material effect on

consolidated financial statements of the Group for current or prior accounting

periods.

The Group has not early applied the following new or revised Standards and

Interpretations that have been issued but are not vet effective:

HKFRS 7 (Amendments)
BEMBREERE 75

HKFRS 9

BEEMEREENE 9%

HKFRS 9 & HKFRS 7 (Amendments)

BEMBREERNFE IRRB LR BRSE
ERF 7% (BFTAX)

HKFRS 10

BEMBHREERSE 105

HKFRS 11

BEEMBERS

HKFRS 12

BEEMBREENE 125

N,

R 115
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Improvement to HKFRSs issued in 2010

BE T -TERB BB HREER
Related party disclosures

AEAL 2 HE

Prepayments of a minimum funding requirement

REERRTE 2 BN KA

Extinguishing financial liabilities with equity instruments

MEATARHEERAR

RAMITRBETEERHRELNHAKE
BRRATEETHRNIGANBHRALEEX

B/ 458
FE

AEEVERFRATICEMERRENZ
Hal RS BRI ERI N2

Disclosures - Transfers of financial assets'

RE-HRcREE'

Disclosures - Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities”

RE-HEeREERSRARG?

Financial instruments®

TRIAS®

Mandatory effective date of HKFRS 9 and transition disclosures®

BAMBREERNE IR ZBHEMAR LG
BT

Consolidated financial statements

HEMBRR?

Joint arrangements’

BERHE?

Disclosure of interests in other entities’
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | HZZE——F+-A=+—RHILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 2. ERFIREEIERMBREE

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Contd) Al((EEMBHREER]) &

HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement?

BEMBREERF 135 NTEFE?

HKAS | (Amendments) Presentation of items of other comprehensive income®

BEGAENE 1R (BFIIX) 2IHMEERFERS

HKAS 12 (Amendments) Deferred tax: Recovery of underlying assets®

BEEGFEAE 125 (BFIA) BRI  BOEEEE

HKAS 19 (Revised 201 1) Employee benefits?

BAGERE 195 (ZT— —FKIEFT) BEREH?

HKAS 27 (as revised in 201 1) Separate financial statements?

BEGAEUE27TH (ZFT——F&KEFT) BB R 2

HKAS 28 (as revised in 201 ) Investments in associates and joint ventures?

BEEGEAE 285 (ZT— —FLEF) REE LR RAEREZRE? 1

HKAS 32 (Amendments) Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities®

BAGERE 325 (BFIK) BHEEREERERARS

HK(IFRIC) - INT 20 Stripping costs in the production phase of a surface mine?

Bt (ARPBRERERES) RO A EE R R 2 SUBERR AR 2

—2BE 205
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | July 2011. ! RZZ——F+A-Azdz &Rz EEHHE

B

’ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2013. 2 RIE-—=F—-A—-H3zERrzFEHHE
HRCe

: Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2015. ’ RIE-RF-A—-AgzERRZFEHE
R

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2012. ¢ R-E——F—-A—-Azkz&kHBzFEHHE
B

° Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | July 2012, ° RIE-——F+A—HAI &Rz FEHE
HRCe

¢ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2014, ¢ RIE-mE-A-AsRieBERzFEHE
R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | BZ=E——F+ZA=+—HILFE

2.  APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 2.

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Cont'd)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” issued in 2009 introduces new requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9 “Financial
instruments” amended in 2010 adds requirements for financial liabilities and for

derecognition.

. HKFRS 9 requires all recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 “Financial instruments: Recognition and measurement” are
subsequently measured at either amortised cost or fair value. Specifically,
debt investments that are held within a business model whose objective
is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair values at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make an
irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an
equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other comprehensive

income, with only dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.

*  The most significant effect of HKFRS 9 regarding the classification and
measurement of financial liabilities relates to the presentation of changes
in the fair value of a financial liability (designated as at fair value through
profit or loss) attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability.
Specifically, under HKFRS 9, for financial liabilities that are designated as at
fair value through profit or loss, the amount of change in the fair value of
the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of
that liability is presented in other comprehensive income, unless the
recognition of the effects of changes in the liability's credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch
in profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liability’s
credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Previously,
under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value of the
financial liability designated as at fair value through profit or loss was

presented in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | HZZE——F+-A=+—RHILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Contd)

The directors anticipate that HKFRS 9 that will be adopted in the Group's
consolidated financial statements for the annual period beginning | January
2015 and that the application of the new Standard is not expected to have

significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

New and revised standards on consolidation and disclosures

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 “Consolidated and separate financial
statements” that deal with consolidated financial statements. HKFRS 10
includes a new definition of control that contains three elements: (a) power
over an investee, (b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee, and (c) the ability to use its power over the
investee to affect the amount of the investor's returns. Extensive guidance has

been added in HKFRS 10 to deal with complex scenarios.

HKFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable to entities that have
interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and/or unconsolidated
structured entities. In general, the disclosure requirements in HKFRS 12 are

more extensive than those in the current standards.

HKFRS 10 and HKFRS|2 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
| January 2013.The directors anticipate that these standards will be adopted in
the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the annual period beginning
| January 2013. The application of these standards may not have impact on

amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | BZ=E——F+ZA=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Contd)

Amendments to HKAS | Presentation of items of other comprehensive
income

The amendments to HKAS | retain the option to present profit or loss and
other comprehensive income in either a single statement or in two separate
but consecutive statements. However, the amendments to HKAS | require
additional disclosures to be made in the other comprehensive income section
such that items of other comprehensive income are grouped into two
categories: (a) items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss;
and (b) items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when
specific conditions are met. Income tax on items of other comprehensive

income is required to be allocated on the same basis.

The amendments to HKAS | are effective for the Group for annual periods
beginning on | January 2013. The presentation of items of other
comprehensive income will be modified accordingly when the amendments are

applied in the future accounting periods.

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred tax - Recovery of underlying assets

The amendments to HKAS 12 provide an exception to the general principles
in HKAS 12 that the measurement of deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities should reflect the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the entity expects to recover the carrying amount of an asset.
Specifically, under the amendments, investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model in accordance with HKAS 40 “Investment property”
are presumed to be recovered through sale for the purposes of measuring

deferred taxes, unless the presumption is rebutted in certain circumstances.

The amendments to HKAS 12 are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after | January 2012. If the presumption is not rebutted, the directors
anticipate that the measurement of deferred tax shall reflect the tax
consequences of recovering the carrying amount of investment property

entirely through sale.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of the other new
and revised standards, amendments or interpretations will have no material

impact on the consolidated financial statements.

DRAGONITE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 2011 Annual Report

ERFIREEIIERENBREE
AEEMBREEA]) &

BRSTEAFIRNBT AL b2
HKARE
BRGHEUNFIROETAREUNE—
RRIAMNBULEEERR2FIBER
Htt2BRAWERE - A > BB
ATERFIRNETAREARA B ERE
WA REREIRE - UEKEME
HRARBEDBME : ERTEE
FHOBERDMER » RORERFE
fRfTE > ARAEHOBEERGENER
B HE2mBARRNFAERARE
REET AN -

BRGENSIRNET AR T~
ZHE-A-HRBENFRER - BEF
ARAREHEAR - EHE2ERA
ERMEFTAREEHAEES -

BEREEMNENRNBITFELERR
-KEHRBEE
EREHENENRNETAREES
ATERE 12 AE N —RRAIEL R
BISMER - BEREHAEERETEHIAR
EREERRRZERERRDEERE
ENTAMELENRETE - B A9
I RIERE G ERF405 [REY
FIARFERAGENRED R HE
EHEN ERRENFEERLEME
B BRFEETERTRERKE

BERGHENENRNET AR -F
—ZHE-A-HRZBRARNFEL
Moo MBREAKRRE  EFRHPRTH
B ERRREBLELHUERE
NEEEENHBTE -

ARRESEY  ERAEMHTREE
AIEA - BAEREBIEHRAMBR
REXEATE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | HZZE——F+-A=+—RHILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical
cost basis except for certain financial instruments and investment property,
which are measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies set
out below. Historical cost is generally based on fair value of the consideration

given in exchange for goods.

The principal accounting policies are set out below:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of
the Company and entities controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries).
Control is achieved where the Company has the power to govern the financial

and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income from the effective

date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those used by

other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on

consolidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | BZ=E——F+ZA=+—HILFE

3. EXREWEBR @

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The
consideration transferred in a business combination is measured at fair value,
which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally

recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities

assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

¢ deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets related to
employee benefit arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 12 “Income taxes” and HKAS 19 “Employee

benefits” respectively;

* liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree or share-based payment arrangements of
the Group entered into to replace share-based payment arrangements of
the acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 “Share-based

payment” at the acquisition date (see the accounting policy below); and

*  assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in
accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current assets held for sale and

discontinued operations” are measured in accordance with that Standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and
the fair value of the acquirer's previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if
any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment, the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised

immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | HZZE——F+-A=+—RHILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Goodwill
Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses, if any, and is presented in the consolidated

statement of financial position as an intangible asset.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the
relevant cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that is

expected to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently whenever there is an indication that
the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting
period, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit, and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata
on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. An impairment loss for goodwill is not

reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable amount of
goodwill capitalised is included in the determination of the amount of profit or

loss on disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | BZ=E——F+ZA=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold in the normal

course of business, net of discounts, sales related taxes and returns.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the goods are delivered and

title has passed at which time all the following conditions are satisfied:

*  the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards

of ownership of the goods;

*  the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control over the

goods sold;
*  the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

. it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction

will flow to the Group; and

*  the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be

measured reliably.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of income can be
measured reliably. Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net

carrying amount on initial recognition.

Rental income is recognised, on a straight-line basis, over the terms of the

respective leases.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the Group's rights to

receive payment have been established.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | HZZE——F+-A=+—RHILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period in

which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development activities (or
from the development phase of an internal project) is recognised if, and only if,

all of the following have been demonstrated:

*  the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be

available for use or sale;
*  the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;
*  the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

*  how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits;

*  the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to

complete the development and to use or sell the intangible asset; and

*  the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the

intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible asset is the
sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when the intangible asset first
meets the recognition criteria listed above. Where no internally-generated
intangible asset can be recognised, development expenditure is charged to

profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible asset is
measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment

losses (if any), on the same basis as intangible assets acquired separately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | BZ=E——F+ZA=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment

losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment less their residual values over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with

the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued
use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is

recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation. Investment properties include land held for undetermined future

use, which is regarded as held for capital appreciation purpose.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at their fair values. Gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair value of investment property are included in profit or loss

for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit or loss in the

period in which the item is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | HZZE——F+-A=+—RHILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Leasing
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other

leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor
Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a

straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis

over the lease term.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group assesses
the classification of each element as a finance or an operating lease separately
based on the assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of each element have been transferred to the Group,
unless it is clear that both elements are operating leases in which case the
entire lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease
payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between
the land and the building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of
the leasehold interests in the land element and building element of the lease at

the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating lease is
presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated statement of

financial position and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | BZ=E——F+ZA=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the
end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost

in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the
retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the
period except for differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary
items in respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income, in which cases, the exchange differences are also

recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements, the assets
and liabilities of the Group's operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and their income and expenses
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if
any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity

under the heading of the translation reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group's entire
interest in a foreign operation), all of the exchange differences accumulated in
equity in respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the Company

are reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | HZZE——F+-A=+—RHILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale are added
to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are substantially ready

for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from

the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which they are incurred.

Retirement benefits costs
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefits schemes and state-
managed retirement benefit scheme are recognised as expenses when

employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and

deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year Taxable profit
differs from profit as reported in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting

period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | BZ=E——F+ZA=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Taxation (Cont'd)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and
the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither

the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits
of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the

foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of the
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be

recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset is
realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | HZZE——F+-A=+—RHILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Taxation (Cont'd)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects,
at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of

its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates
to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax is also recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful lives are carried at
costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses, if
any. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives (see the accounting policy in

respect of impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets below).

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured
at the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and are recognised in profit or loss in the period when the asset is

derecognised.

The Group's intangible assets represent technology know-how acquired from

third parties.

Inventories
Inventories comprise raw materials, work-in-progress and finished goods are

carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost includes direct materials, direct labour costs and overheads that have
been incurred in bringing the inventories and work in progress to their present

location and condition and is calculated using the weighted average method.

Net realisable value is the estimated by the management and is determined by
reference to the selling price less all costs to completion and costs to be

incurred in selling and distribution.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | BZ=E——F+ZA=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the consolidated
statement of financial position when a group entity becomes a party to the

contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are

recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the three categories,
including financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), loans
and receivables and available-for-sale financial assets. The classification depends
on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the
time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the

marketplace.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | HZZE——F+-A=+—RHILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of
a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees on points paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where

appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt

instruments.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at FVTPL has two subcategories, including financial assets held

for trading and those designated as at FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

* it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near

future; or

e it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments that the
Group manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term

profit-taking; or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging

instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | BZ=E——F+ZA=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets (Contd)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Cont'd)
A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may be designated

as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

*  such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or

recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

*  the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets or financial
liabilities or both, which is managed and its performance is evaluated on a
fair value basis, in accordance with the Group's documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information about the grouping

is provided internally on that basis; or

¢ it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives,
and HKAS 39 permits the entire combined contract (asset or liability) to
be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with changes in fair value
arising from remeasurement recognised directly in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss includes

any dividend or interest earned on the financial assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to
initial recognition, loans and receivables (including trade receivables, other
receivables and bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses (see

accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets below).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | HZZE——F+-A=+—RHILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

Available-for-sale financial assets
The Group’s available-for-sale financial assets comprised unlisted equity

investments.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured, are
measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at the end of the
reporting period (see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets

below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of the reporting period. Financial assets are considered
to be impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the

estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of that investment below its cost is considered to be objective

evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could include:

*  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

*  default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

* it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial

re-organisation; or

*  disappearance of an active market for that financial assets because of

financial difficulties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | BZ=E——F+ZA=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Financial instruments (Contd)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables, assets that
are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for
impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a
portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past
the average credit period from 60 to 270 days, observable changes in national

or local economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment
loss is the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s

original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will not

be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss
directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade receivables, where
the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in
profit or loss. When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts

previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent period, the
amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment losses was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to
the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the

impairment not been recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | HZZE——F+-A=+—RHILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets (Contd)

Impairment losses on available-for-sales equity securities will not be reversed
through profit or loss in subsequent periods. Any increase in fair value
subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised directly in other

comprehensive income and accumulated in investments revaluation reserve.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of
the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial

liability instrument.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a derivative contract
is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end
of the reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss

immediately.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the

assets of the group after deducting all of its liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of
a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, on,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial

recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | BZ=E——F+ZA=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial liabilities and equity (Cont'd)

Convertible bonds containing liability component and conversion option derivative

Convertible bonds issued by the Group that contain liability, early redemption
option derivatives and conversion option components are classified separately
into respective items on initial recognition. Conversion option that will be
settled other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another
financial asset for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity instruments is
a conversion option derivative. At the date of issue, the liability, early
redemption options and conversion option components are recognised at fair

value.

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the convertible bonds is
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The early
redemption option derivatives and conversion option derivative is measured at

fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

When an entity extinguishes the convertible bonds before maturity through an
early redemption or repurchase, in which the original conversion privileges are
unchanged, are extinguished, the consideration paid and any transaction costs
for the repurchase or redemption are allocated to the liability, early
redemption option derivatives and conversion option components of the
instrument at the date of the transaction. The method used in allocating the
consideration paid and transaction costs to the separate components is
consistent with that used in the original allocation to the separate components
of the proceeds received by the Group when the convertible bonds were

issued.

Once the allocation of the consideration is made, the amount of gain or loss
relating to the liability component are recognised in profit or loss and equity

respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | HZZE——F+-A=+—RHILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial liabilities and equity (Contd)

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible bonds are
allocated to the liability, early redemption option derivatives and conversion
option components in proportion to their relative fair values. Transaction costs
relating to the conversion option derivative is charged to profit or loss
immediately. Transaction costs relating to the liability component are included
in the carrying amount of the liability portion and amortised over the period

of the convertible bonds using the effective interest method.

Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities including trade payables, other payables and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective

interest rate method.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are separated from the
relevant host contracts (the liability component) and deemed as held-for-
trading when the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded
derivatives are not closely related to those of the host contracts, and the

combined contracts are not measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds

received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is recognised and
deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on
the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity

instruments.

Rights issued by the Company for issuing a fixed number of the Company's
equity instruments for a fixed amount of any currency are equity instruments if
the Company offers the rights pro rata to all of its existing owners of ordinary

shareholders of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | BZ=E——F+ZA=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Financial instruments (Contd)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to
the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset
and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the
Group continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its continuing
involvement and recognises an associated liability. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises

a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the
asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other

comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in the
relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference between
the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the

consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts
of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. If the recoverable amount
of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss

is recognised as an expense immediately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | HZZE——F+-A=+—RHILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill
(Contd)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the
asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income

immediately.

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees and others providing similar services as
employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the fair value of
share options granted at the grant date is expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase in equity (share options

reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the
revision of the estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the
cumulative expense reflects the revised estimated, with a corresponding

adjustment to share options reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to share premium.
When the share options are lapsed after the vesting date or still not exercised
at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share option reserve

will be transferred to accumulated losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | BZ=E——F+ZA=+—HILFE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described in
note 3, the directors of the Company are required to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are

considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of

assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Fair value of derivative financial instruments and financial assets designated
at fair value through profit or loss

As described in notes 19 and 25, the directors of the Company use their
judgment in selecting an appropriate valuation technique for financial
instruments not quoted in an active market. Valuation techniques commonly
used by market practitioners are applied. The derivative component of the
convertible bonds, financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss
and derivative financial instruments are valued using the Binominal model that
incorporated market data and involved uncertainty in estimates used by
management in the assumption. Binominal model requires the input of highly
subjective assumptions, including the volatility of share price, changes in
subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate. The
carrying amounts of the financial derivatives are set out in notes 19 and 25

respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | HZZE——F+-A=+—RHILFE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Contd)

Allowances for inventories

The management of the Group reviews an aging analysis at the end of the
reporting period and makes allowance for obsolete and slow-moving inventory
items identified that are no longer suitable for use in production or sale. The
management estimates the net realisable value for such finished goods and
work-in progress based primarily on the latest invoice prices and current
market conditions. The Group carries out an inventory review on a product-
by-product basis at the end of the reporting period and makes allowance for

obsolete items.

If the market condition was to deteriorate, resulting in a lower net realisable
value for such finished goods and work-in-progress, additional allowances may

be required.

As at 31 December 201 I, the carrying amount of inventories is approximately
HK$8,487,000 (net of allowance for obsolescence inventories of approximately
HK$357,562,000) (2010: carrying amount of approximately HK$35,378,000,
net of allowance for obsolescence inventories of approximately
HK$325,766,000).

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able
to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to shareholder
through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall

strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which include the
borrowings disclosed in note 29 and equity attributable to equity holders of

the Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a regular basis.
As part of this review, the directors consider the cost of capital and the risks
associates with each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the
directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as well as the

issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | BZ=E——F+ZA=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. €®MIA
Categories of financial instruments ¢WMIAZDE
2011 2010
“E-—-F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TET
Financial assets TREE
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BATEFAABRLEMEE
— Designated at fair value through profit or loss —EEEATES AR 19,430 24,450
— Held-for-trading investments —%{/EX%)EH EZRE 105,224 1,113
Loans and receivables R YR
(including cash and cash equivalents) (E%ﬁﬁ&fﬁi%ﬁlﬁ 8) 61,166 18,309
Financial liabilities TRARE
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss RAFEFABRZERMEE
— Derivative financial instruments —THEEBIA 5,689 377
Amortised cost 2 SEIDEN 111,024 35,792
Financial risk management objectives and policies MEEMREERNRIECK

The Group’s major financial instruments include available-for-sale investments,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, trade receivables, other
receivables, bank balances and cash, trade payables, other payables, borrowings,
derivative financial instruments and convertible bonds. Details of the financial
instruments are disclosed in the respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include market risk (interest rate risk, currency risk
and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely

and effective manner.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | HZZE——F+-A=+—RHILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont'd)

Market risk

Currency risk

Certain bank balances of the Group are denominated in foreign currencies
which are different from functional currencies of respective group entities. As
at 31 December 2011 and 2010, as bank balances of respective group entities
denominated in foreign currency was immaterial, the Group does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy. However, the management monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise. In view of the immaterial foreign currency

amount, no sensitivity analysis was presented.

Interest rate risk
The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to variable-

rate bank balances and variable-rate bank borrowings.

The Group was exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to the fixed-
rate borrowings through the impact of market interest rate changes on

interest bearing borrowings.

The Group currently does not have interest rate hedging policy. However, the
management will consider hedging significant interest rate exposure should the

need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The management considers that the Group’s exposure to cash flow interest
rate risk on variable-rate bank balances and bank borrowings and fair value
interest rate risk on fixed-rate borrowings as a result of the change of market
interest rate is insignificant due to its short-term maturity and thus no

sensitivity analysis is prepared for interest rate risk.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | BZ=E——F+ZA=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont'd)
Market risk (Contd)

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to price risk in respect of:

*  the conversion option and early redemption options embedded in the
convertible bonds which allows the bondholders to convert to the
Company’s ordinary shares and allow the bondholders and the Group to

early redeem the convertible bonds.

*  the conversion option embedded in the financial assets designated at fair
value through profit or loss which allows the Company to convert to the

issuers’ ordinary shares.

*  The Call Option and Put Option (as defined and set out in note 25) in
relation to acquisition of entire equity interests in Apex Corporate
Investments Limited (“the Chinese Medical Clinic"), which engaged in the

Chinese Medical Clinic operation in Hong Kong.

*  held for trading investments in equity securities listed in the respective

stock exchange.

Sensitivity analysis

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis are unrepresentative of the
inherent market risk as the pricing model used in the fair value valuation of the
conversion option, early redemption options embedded in the convertible
bonds and Call Option and Put Option involves multiple variables and certain

variables are interdependent. Thus, no sensitivity analyses are provided.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure
to equity price risks at the end of the reporting period. If the prices of the
respective equity instruments had been 5% (2010: 5%) higher/lower, post-tax
loss for the year ended 3| December 2011 would decrease/increase by
HK$5,261,000 (2010: HK$556,000) as a result of the changes in fair value of

held-for-trading investments.

The management would manage its exposure arising from these investments
by closely monitoring the performance of respective listed equity security and
market conditions. The management would consider diversifying the portfolio

of these investments as they consider appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | HZZE——F+-A=+—RHILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont'd)

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement

of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at the end of the reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the

Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss
is limited because the counterparties are companies listed in The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong. The directors consider the default in payment upon
maturity to be low. In addition, management of the Group reviews the public
announcements and financial information of these listed companies in order to
assess their credit quality. In this regard, the directors’ of the Company consider

that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties are banks

with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds which are deposited
with several banks with high credit ratings, the Group does not have any other
significant concentration of credit risk. Trade receivables consist of a large

number of customers.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M RRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | BZ=E——F+ZA=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont'd)

Liquidity risk

The Group manages its liquidity risk by monitoring and maintaining a level of
cash and cash equivalents secured adequate by the management to finance the
Group'’s operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
management monitors the utilisation of bank borrowing and ensure

compliance with loan covenants.

The following table details the Group's remaining contractual maturity for its
non-derivative financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay. Specifically, bank loans with a repayment on
demand clause are included in the earliest time band regardless of the
probability of the banks choosing to exercise their rights. The maturity dates
for other financial liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates. The

table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the extent that interest
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flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate

curve at the end of the reporting period.

Liquidity risk tables RBEEABR R
Carrying
On amount at
Weighted demand or Total 31.12.2011
average less than -3 3 months undiscounted R-F——F
interest rate | month months to | year cash flows +=A
MEFY RERED -z =R AREERERE =t+-H
S —BAUT =f@A E-fF REAE ZREE
% HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
E TER TER TER TER TER
2011 —F—F
Non-derivative FTEER
financial liabilities =L
Trade payables ENESERE — 5,093 1,179 — 6,272 6,272
Other payables H it e 3B — 12,410 — — 12,410 12,410
Borrowings fER note | 92,342 — — 92,342 92,342
109,845 1,179 = 111,024 111,024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | HZZE——F+-A=+—RHILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd) 6. £@MIA B
Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont'd) BERBEERNREE (8)
Liquidity risk (Cont'd) REBELERE (&
Liquidity risk tables (Cont'd) RBEEER * (B)
Carrying
On amount at
Weighted demand or Total 31.12.2010
average less than -3 3 months undiscounted RZE—ZF
interest rate | month months to | year cash flows +=A
MEFY RERER -F ZHR AREERAE =t+-H
GilpS —fEART =f8R E-F REAE ZREE
% HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
E TER TER TER TER TER
2010 “E-FF
Non-derivative FiTEERERE
financial liabilities
Trade payables ENE SRR — 4647 — — 4,647 4,647
Other payables Hit R FE — 22,009 — — 22,009 22,009
Convertible Bonds AR B 5
(note 2) (B7E2) 16 — — 5,000 5,000 4,136
Other borrowings HinfE 0 24 — 5,268 — 5,268 5,000
26,656 5,268 5,000 36,924 35,792
Notes: Piast
(1) Variable-rate borrowings carry interest at Prime Rate less 2% at the end of the (1) BEHRREEHER2%EFBH
reporting period is used in the maturity analysis. FEERARIBASN -
(2) The undiscounted cash outflows represent the coupon interest payments and (2) AERBERLERRALATERNE

redemption amount of the Convertible Bonds on the assumption that they will

not be early redeemed by the Company before the maturity date.

HEMRFBEOVARESRERES
ZEEFENRRELEE -

011 %H% ZEEBERAA



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | BZ=E——F+ZA=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont'd)

Liquidity risk (Contd)

Mortgage loans with a repayment on demand clause are included in the “on
demand or within | month” time band in the above maturity analysis. The
aggregate undiscounted principal amounts of the mortgage loans amounted to
approximately HK$27,342,000 as at 31 December 2011 (2010: nil). Taking into
account the Group's financial position, the Directors of the Company do not
believe that it is probable that the bank will exercise its discretionary rights to
demand immediate payment. The Directors of the Company believe that such
mortgage loan will be repaid within |3 years after the reporting date in
accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements.
The aggregate principal and interest cash outflows amounted to approximately
HK$33,893,000 as at 31 December 2011 (2010: nil). The bank repayment

schedules based on the scheduled repayment dates as per the following:

¢MIA B
MHEEREEENRBE (B
RBELERE (B)

MERERBEERIZERERRN L
B E A A ATE A TR B Sk sk — {8 A A
T2 BBARR - R=F——F+=A
=+ ZEEREXORERALSE
BB AB27,342,0008 T (ZT—TF -
T) KERAEENUBMRE - AL
AEFHERITIGTENEEZ KA
BXRHE ARAIEZHEZSHA
EXERBEERBEFREH 2TEERA
HNREABREI3FNER - RN —
—F+ZA=1+—0 KEBERFE
B4 533,893,000 (ZE—F
F:8) ARGTEERAEZRTER
FEINT

HK$000
TER

Within one year —FRQ

In the second to fifth year ZERF
More than five year RTEMNE

2,530
10,120
21,243

33,893

The amount included above for variable-rate borrowings are subject to change
if changes in variable-interest rates differ to those estimates of interest rates

determined at the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | HZZE——F+-A=+—RHILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as

follows:

the fair values of financial assets with standard terms and conditions and
traded on active liquid markets are determined with reference to quoted

market bid prices;

the fair values of other financial assets and financial liabilities (excluding
derivative financial instruments) are determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis;

and

the fair values of derivative financial instruments are calculated using

option pricing model.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and

financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial

statements approximate their fair values.

Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated statement of financial

position

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are

measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels |

to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is observable.

Level | fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices

(unadjusted) in active market for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other
than quoted prices included within Level | that are observable for the
assets or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived

from prices).

Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation
techniques that include inputs for the asset or liability that are not based

on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

EBMIA (B

ATHE
tHEERERABECA
F

FERATE

o HAEBREFEFREHILNERTA
MEEEZEREEZATENS
EMHSMRENEET

o HhemEERSBARE(TRIEN
EeBMIB)MATFENRELER
e EERER  RERASTES
wEE &

o TESRMIANAVERBHEE
(BRAEET -

EERR ERSUMBHRRP ABEK
N eMEERERAB KA
B BERVEMRE -

EFREHBRRRERZ A FETE

TREINNIERRRARFEFEZ
ERTARRARTFEABERESA
—E=fz ot e

o F-RRAVEFERAEERDS
REFRBER B RIG 2RE RE
AR) EITZETE

o FERATEHEBEUE-LRE
AN EE S B B R BRI (&
W EE (BER) S EE BNRER
HE)) ETZEE -

. FSERATENERABERLHE
ERTEETSRAZ ARLA R
SH(TTBESH) 216 B %R
SPEE R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M RRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | BZ=E——F+ZA=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd) 6. 2@MIA #
Fair value (Contd) NFE (B
Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated statement of financial EEEHBERRERRZAFEGTE
position (Contd) (%)
As at 3| December 201 | R-ZFE——F+-A=+—H
Level | Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—R BZR N #Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTAER THER THER THER
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEFABREZ
THEE
Non-derivative financial BERSGRB 2
assets held for trading FITETHEE 105,224 — — 105,224
Investment in convertible HEAMBMBRTH
instruments — — 19,430 19,430
Total et 105,224 — 19,430 124,654

Financial liabilities FVTPL BAFEFABREZ

cHEE
Derivative financial instruments T4 &Rt T A — — 5,689 5,689
As at 31 December 2010 R-ZFE-—ZFFf-A=+—H
Level | Level 2 Level 3 Total
E— FE-R E=M BEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET TET TET TET

Financial assets at FVTPL ROFEFTABZEZ

EHEE
Non-derivative financial assets  FHERX S HE 2
held for trading FITEEREE 1,113 — — 11,113
Investment in convertible BREAHRERTA
instruments — — 24,450 24,450
Total wEt I3 — 24,450 35563

Financial liabilities at FVTPL ROFEFTABZEZ

CRAE
Derivative financial instruments  $TAE ST A — — 377 377
There were no transfers between Level | and 2 in the current and prior years. RAFERBAFEE—REF -2

I -
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6.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | HZZE——F+-A=+—RHILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd) 6. £@MIA B
Fair value (Contd) AVE (B)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of financial assets CHEEZE=RAFHEHTEZHK
Conversion Investment
Call Option/ option in convertible
Put Option derivatives instruments
REBRE BREEE RE&
EAE fTETR ARKRIA
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiET FET TET
At | January 2010 R-_ZE—ZF—H—H — — —
Purchases BA — — 14,750
Issuance of convertible bonds BT RE S — (19,340) —
Conversion i — 18,051 —
Gain in profit or loss Bz e — 912 9,700
At 31 December 2010 KR_Z-ZTF+-_A=+—H — (377) 24,450
Granted during the year FREE (6,270) — —
(Loss) gain in profit or loss Baz (BR)a 581 377 (10,295)
Disposal & — — (24,750)
Purchases BA — — 30,025
At 31 December 201 | RZZE——F+-HA=+—H (5,689) — 19,430

Fair value gains or losses on Call Option, Put Option and conversion option
derivative embedded in the convertible bonds are included in “other gains and
losses” in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Fair value

gains or losses in investment in convertible instruments are included in

“change in fair value on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss” in

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

REHE  RAPERAURKRESNT
ZHMBPERETATAN G 2E NS
RARRBIEMEE] - REAKKTA
ZATFERSERGER2ARERARAR
[RAVEH ARGz BEEND TE
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For the year ended 3| December 201 | BZ=E——F+ZA=+—HILFE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. 7EEH

The Group's executive directors are the chief operation decision makers as AR ARERTESHAHAEEEE

they collectively make strategic decisions towards the Group's operations. EHRBAT  HRERFBELERRK

During the year ended 31 December 2011, securities trading and investments E-BE_T——H+T-A=1t—Hit

has become a substantial operating activity to the Group, therefore it is FE BHEXFREBENBAEEANE

reported in a new reportable and operating segment. Also, the Group EREER AEEZHRA—HEFNER

acquired Central Town Limited (“CTL") which includes a subsidiary principally Ligen - REEEHRE Central

engaged in property investment in Hong Kong (details refer to note 33). Thus, Town Limited ([CTL)) » BE—HEZ

the executive directors consider property investment in Hong Kong is another REBRENERENMBAR (FER

new reportable and operating segment upon the acquisition. Figures in the HEE33) - Bt - HITEERRFTRE

segment information for the year ended 31 December 2010 have been & REBZVERERS —HHNER

restated for comparative purposes only. REENE BEZT-TFET A=
T-ALFRZABERZBBEETAU
Byl EHEE -

The Group's reportable and operating segments under HKFRS 8 are therefore AEERBEEMBREELENFSR L2

as follows: BRELESEMT -

(a) health care products, which are mainly represented by ginseng products (a) REBER FERAZEM

(b) pharmaceutical products, which are mainly represented by licensed (b) BEEm FEABEEY

medicines

(c) Ruyan atomizing cigarettes (c) MEFZLE

(d) securities trading and investments (d) BHERHERERE

(e) property investment in Hong Kong (e) REAZMERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HmR MR

For the year ended 3| December 201 | HZZE——F+-A=+—RHILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 7. oEER B

Segment turnover and results TEEXERXE

The following is an analysis of the Group’s turnover and results by reportable NTREZHRRBEN R AERER
and operating segments. BREEZHM -

For the year ended 31 December 2011

HE-F-——-#+-A=1+-HLFE

Ruyan Securities Property

Health care Pharmaceutical atomizing  tradingand  investment in

investments Consolidated

BERS
kEE
HK$'000
TERT

products products cigarettes Hong Kong
REE
ZNERE
HK$°000

TERT

REER
HK$'000
TER

BR2Em
HK$'000
TR

MERE
HK$°000
TR

&t
HK$°000
FHR

Segment turnover
Sales of goods
Change in fair value of
financial assets
at fair value through
profit or loss
Dividend income

Rental income

D
W

HEXE
EMHE
BATFER

UNF

TREEZ

RFEED
BEKA
HERA

~

=

Segment loss

PEER

Other income

Change in fair value of
derivative financial
instruments

Loss on disposal of subsidiaries

Share-based payment expenses

Unallocated corporate expenses

Finance costs

LGN
TESR
TAZA
FEEH
HEMER
Al ZER
AR AR B
MRz
ADERA
X
MHER

LLoss before taxation

BAER

o SRERARAT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | BZ=E——F+ZA=+—HILFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd)

Segment turnover and results (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2010

7. 2RER#

DHEEEE
EE-F—

TEL_A=F—HIFE

Securities

Health Ruyan trading and
care  Pharmaceutical atomizing investments
products products cigarettes BHERD Consolidated
REEM BEEEm  WMEBRLE kiR A&
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET
Segment turnover PEERE
Sales of goods EMHE 6,202 18,543 (2959) 21,786
Change in fair value of BRATE AR
financial assets at fair HIEREE
value through ZRVEEE
profit or loss — — 1,404 1,404
6,202 18,543 (2959) 1,404 23,190
Segment (loss) profit 28 (B8 &7 (55,195) (12,116) (123,856) 1,404 (189,763)
Other income Hi A 795
Change in fair value of fTEeMIA
derivative financial ZRYE
instruments 4 912
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries &M B A B2 Wz 21903
Share-based payment expenses  JARR (3 AR 2 i) (12,552)
Unallocated corporate expenses 7 7 B2 23 37 ! (36,189)
Finance costs MBER (17.945)
Loss before taxation BAIEE (232,839)
Segment turnover includes proceeds from sales of goods, dividend income and DTHEEXERREEMEE  REKAR

rental income. In addition, the chief operation decision maker also considers

change in fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

(excluding derivative financial instruments) as segment turnover.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | HZZE——F+-A=+—RHILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 7. PEER B
Segment turnover and results (Contd) PEEXBEREE (B
Segment (loss) profit represents the loss from/profit earned by each segment PE(BR)RFESIEEEZER/
without allocation of other income, change in fair value of derivative financial PRI @ A A RO IREA KA -
instruments, loss/gain on disposal of subsidiaries, share-based payment TEeMIAZATEEY LENE
expenses, unallocated corporate expenses and certain finance costs. This is the ARZER/ W - UROABEBRER
measure reported to the chief operating decision maker for the purposes of ZXW ROBRARXERETHEE
resource allocation and performance assessment. Aot NRAITELEAREZRIAE
R AR EERRFERR
Segment assets and liabilities PTEEEREE
The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities by reportable UTARERERE Yy REFEE
and operating segment: LEEZSW:
As at 31 December 201 | R-g——fE+=-F=+—8
Ruyan Securities Property
Health care Pharmaceutical atomizing  trading and  investment in
products products cigarettes  investments Hong Kong  Consolidated
BEXS RE#R
REEmM BREm WEBLE kRE ZUERE Bt
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TR FER TR TER  FER  TER
ASSETS 'E
Segment assets PEREE 21,519 14,738 9,159 125,332 145,350 316,098
Bank balances and cash RITRBR
Be 55,970
Taxation recoverable QL ELA 1,579
Other receivables Hit MR 1,676
Consolidated total assets GaEERRE 375,323
LIABILITIES &
Segment liabilities ok =V 8,374 10,490 13,949 — 28,169 60,982
Other payables Hi R IR 6,297
Taxation payable FERTE 1,503
Derivative financial fTEemIA 5,689
instruments
Borrowings B 65,000
Consolidated total liabilities #RA A&
R 139,471
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | BZ=E——F+ZA=+—HILFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 7. PEER (B
Segment assets and liabilities (Cont'd) PEEEREE (B
As at 31 December 2010 R-F-FFF-A=1—H
Securities
Health Ruyan trading and
care  Pharmaceutical atomizing investments
products products Cigarettes #FHXH  Consolidated
REEM BEER  NEB(LE REE A&t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET THET THET THET
ASSETS BE
Segment assets NEEE 46,348 23,375 7,595 35,563 112,881
Bank balances and cash RITERR
Re 1,681
Taxation recoverable REdEE 2,600
Other receivables H i B 2,048
Consolidated total assets GEEERRE 129,210
LIABILITIES &
Segment liabilities ok =V 8,777 7617 14421 — 30815
Other payables H e 308 15,101
Taxation payable FENHE 891
Convertible bonds R ES 4136
Derivative financial instruments T4 & @ TE 377
Borrowings EE 5,000
Consolidated total liabilities ~ 47& B &
ks 56320
For the purpose of monitoring segment performances and allocating resources REBRIBRARIBEZAZERS
between segments: i
+  all assets are allocated to reportable and operating segments, other than s MBEENRZEBRRELNE -
certain other receivables, taxation recoverable and bank balances and W& T E A RWRIE - AT EE R
cash. RBITEBR IR BRI -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | HZZE——F+-A=+—RHILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 7. PEER B
Segment assets and liabilities (Cont'd) PEEERAE (B
+  all liabilities are allocated to reportable and operating segments, other s MEBEAESIRZERRELENE -
than derivative financial instruments, certain other payables, certain WITHEEeRMIE BT HMERMN
borrowings, taxation payable and convertible bonds. B ETER BARERATAR
EHRBI -
Other segment information Hithp &R
Amounts included in measure of segment profit or loss or segment assets: BENFESERNIBERIEEE
A
For the year ended 31 December 201 | BE-_E——-F+-FA=+—-HULFE
Ruyan Securities Property
Health care Pharmaceutical atomizing  trading and  investment in
products products cigarettes  investments Hong Kong  Consolidated
"ERS nE#
REEmM BHEER NEBLE kRE ZUERE CE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TER TERT TERT TERT TET TET
Addition to property, nE - BER
plant and equipment RERE — 339 66 — — 405
Depreciation of property, nE - BER
plant and equipment BRETE 1,802 700 3,513 — — 6,015
Amortisation of prepaid BAHEHRE
lease payments 2 & 88 = = = = 88
Change in fair value of REMERT
investment property EWd - — — — — 6,009 6,009
Allowance for obsolescence WHEEZ
inventories B 13,341 1,025 7,430 — — 31,796
Allowance for bad and REREE
doubtful debts, net FE 192 1,225 56 — — 1,473
Gain on disposal of HEWE -
property, plant e
and equipment ZWa = = (65) = = (65)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | BZ=E——F+ZA=+—HILFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd) 7. 2EER (B
Other segment information (Cont'd) HwoBER (8)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 BE_ZT-—FTFT_A=1—HIFE
Securities
Health Ruyan trading and
care  Pharmaceutical atomizing investments
products products cigarettes BHERD Consolidated
REEM BEER  MEB(LE R&E B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TET TET TET TET
Addition to property, mE - WER
plant and equipment RERE 694 753 1,931 — 3,378
Depreciation of property, nE - BER
plant and equipment BENE 1,965 683 6515 — 9,163
Amortisation of prepaid BREERE
lease payments g3 85 — — — 85
Amortisation of BRVEEZ
intangible assets B — 753 — — 753
Allowance for obsolescence  JF$HFEZ
inventories BE 7,105 5977 52,317 — 65,399
Allowance for bad and RERBE
doubtful debts, net A 9.801 8,107 19,498 — 37,406
Loss on disposal of HEME -
property, plant s K&k
and equipment 2 EE 37 17 1,280 — 1,334
Impairment loss on mE - BB R
property, plant REZAE
and equipment B 4,051 94 5183 — 9,328
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | HZZE——F+-A=+—RHILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 7. PEER B
Turnover from major products RETEERZEER
2011 2010
—E-—-F —_ZT-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER THET
Health care products REER 96 6,202
Pharmaceutical products BEERD 14,419 18,543
Ruyan atomizing cigarettes mEHE 5,363 (2959)
19,878 21,786
Information about major customers BREEEFZER
There is no single customer contributing over 10% of total sales of the Group HE - Z2——EN_ZET-ZTE+-A=
for the year ended 31 December 2011 and 2010. T—HLFE  BEE-XPEREE

Geographical information

The Group’s non-current assets by geographical location of the assets are

BHERAI0% °

I ER

AEENBEMENENNMZFRDE

detailed below: EZHEET :
2011 2010
—g--% “E-%F
HK$000 HK$'000
TER FHT
The People’s Republic of China ("PRC") REARLRE ([HE]) 28,489 33,091
Hong Kong B 145,000 —
173,489 33,091

Note: The non-current assets exclude financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss.

Wi FRBEETEEEATES A RS

ZEREE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | BZ=E——F+ZA=+—HILFE

8. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 8. HtZEE
2011 2010
“E-—-F —T-TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TET
Change in fair value of derivative TEeMIAZATEE
financial instruments 958 912
Gain (loss) on disposal of property, HEWE - BB R&E s W
plant and equipment (B#E) 65 (1,334)
Impairment loss recognised on MIE - BB REREER
property, plant and equipment ZREEE = (9.328)
Change in fair value of investment REME 2 NTFEEE
property (6,009) —
(4,986) (9,750)
9. FINANCE COSTS 9. MBEA
2011 2010
—B-—-F —T-TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TET
The finance costs represent BB EREATRIE
interests on: )=}
— bank borrowings wholly repayable - ARTFRERER
more than five years ZRITIER 376 —
— other borrowings wholly repayable - ARRFENEHER
within five years 2 EH A &K 1,395 3,548
— Convertible Bonds (note 30) — A#kRESR (M 30) 864 14,397
2,635 17,945

DRAGONITE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 2011 Annual Report



10.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | HZZE——F+-A=+—RHILFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. FTBHAX
2011 2010
—g--%  "T-TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TET FHET
PRC Enterprise Income Tax PRI R PTG 599 492

No Hong Kong Profits Tax is payable by the Company or its subsidiaries

operated in Hong Kong since they had no assessable profit for the year.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law") and
Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries
is 25% from | January 2008 onwards.

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the loss before taxation per the

ARARFEARBEREZHMBRRAIRA
FREYETARRTEHN - KL BER
Rz BEMBH -

REPBEECERERE([REMEHR
B REERBRAERE - B
BRAIZAMBEMRER2% B-ZTN
F-A—HERBER -

AERZRBEGAZENER 2 HA

consolidated statement of comprehensive income as follows: BRERMT :
2011 2010
—g--%  -T-TH
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TET
Loss before taxation TR EE (313,482) (232,839)
Tax at PRC income tax rate of 25% BRBMREHE25% T8 2 A (78,371) (58,210)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible PAMB s X HERIBZ X E
for tax purpose 4,120 28,839
Tax effect of incomes not taxable BRERMZWAHNIE X E
for tax purpose (53) (8,129)
Tax effect of deductible temporary RERF MR L ZH
difference not recognised HRBEzTE 8.368 2,367
Tax effect of tax losses/deductible AR FIE,/ TR E RN
temporary difference not recognised ERHMIBEZTE 66,535 35,625
Taxation for the year REE ZHIE 599 492
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | BZ=E——F+ZA=+—HILFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Contd)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has estimated unused tax losses
of approximately HK$510,910,000 (2010: HK$244,770,000) available for offset
against future profits. No provision of deferred taxation has been recognised in
respect of the tax losses due to unpredictability of future profit streams. The

tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has deductible temporary
difference of HK$490,140,000 (2010: HK$456,668,000). No deferred tax asset
has been recognised in relation to such deductible temporary differences as
the directors of the Company is not certain when taxable profit will be

available again which the deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | HZZE——F+-A=+—RHILFE

LOSS FOR THE YEAR M. *EEFE
2011 2010
—E-——-F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THER TET
Loss for the year has been arrived AEEEHEBEHNKR (GTA)
at after charging (crediting): THEE
Staff costs BEIRMX
Directors’ emoluments (note |2) s=2ie (ME12)
— fees and other emoluments —He REMME 5,443 3,874
Other staff costs HEthB TR
— salaries, allowances and bonus —$e R RIEA 8,838 8,872
— share-based payment expenses (note i) — RO ABERNRzHAZ (i) 783 12,552
— retirement benefits scheme contributions — R A5 Bl 837 463
15,901 25,761
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEZ#H
(included in cost of sales) (BEEHEKEAN) = 753
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments ENEETIE 2 B 88 85
Cost of inventories recognised BRARBFAXZFERAR
as expense (note i) (HH3E) 42,854 84,615
Auditor’s remuneration ZE AN & 1,600 957
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #1% * BIE KX H T E 6,015 9,163
Operating lease rentals in respect T REFEERRL
of land and buildings HERIEB 5,109 8,070
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts, REREE  FH
net (included in other expenses) (BRETHEMHAZA) 1,473 37,406
Research and development expenses MeERx (BREEMRX)
(included in other expenses) 2,309 6,354
Interest income (included in other income) FEWA (BEEEMBARN) (8) (13)
Gross rental income from investment property &% & ¥ % 7 AHEWA (1,671) —

Less: direct operating expenses from
investment property that generate

rental income for the year

B EEARFEEEERA
ZEENFEIERELRN
145

(1,526)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | BZ=E——F+ZA=+—HILFE

LOSS FOR THE YEAR (Contd)

Notes:

0]

Included in the cost of inventories recognised as expense for the year ended 31
December 2011 and 2010 is an allowance for obsolescence inventories of
HK$31,796,000 (2010: HK$65,399,000). The allowance was provided for certain
slow-moving raw materials and finished goods of HK$18,331,000 (2010:
HK$46,551,000) including health care products, pharmaceutical products and
Ruyan atomizing cigarettes. During the year ended 3| December 2011, certain
health care products were spoiled and no longer sellable, and an allowance for
inventories of HK$ 13,465,000 was provided. During the year ended 31 December
2010, certain models of Ruyan atomizing cigarettes had quality problems and an

allowance for inventories of HK$ 18,848,000 was provided.

The share-based payment expenses of HK$783,000 granted to eligible
participants during the year ended 31 December 201 | were related to the
Group’s trading securities business. The share-based payment expenses of
HK$ 11,905,000 presented to certain eligible participants during the year ended
31 December 2010 were related to, among others, the Group’s corporate

exercises.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | HZZE——F+-A=+—RHILFE

12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 12. EEZME
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the fifteen (2010: thirteen) ENSENT AR (ZE—2F: +=
directors were as follows: B)EZZHBWMT
Ching Lam Ho  Toul
Wong ~ Wong Hoo AuYewg  Chan Yen Man, lm  Chng MinSum,  Pang Lo Frank Tk
0l GaryDrew ~ YinSen  Heilin Lk KaiChor MeSze  Angeh  SukPing Ykl Abet  Hong KwongSang ~ H M Manfred fn Z§--F
gk Do IBR IRE RO ERAD RER BRE MHY EER MER  BE BR: 5% Atwe MEF B
HKS000  HKSOD0  HKS00D  HKS000  HKSO0D  HKSO0  HKSOD0  HKSO0D  HKSO00  HKSOD0  HKSOOD  HKBOO0  HKSOO0  HKSO00  HKFOD0  HK§OOD
TR TEr TR TR Thr Tar Th T TR TR TEr TR TR T TEL THn
(note ) (note d) (otef)  (noted)  (oted)  (notec) (oted)  (oted)  (noteg)
(Hize) (Kitd) (W) (fan) (M) (Ko (M) (Kial (W)
Fess ot - - - - - - - - - = - - - -
Other emoluments Efolte
Slares it 15 750 40 L TH 637 &7 30 0 0 - 0 9 ] 0 4%l
Redrement R
beneft scheme - 1 1 2 10 9 0 1 § 6 - - - - Ll
Other dlowances Efzg - m - - - - - - - - - - - - - m
1 104 49 79 T 6 647 B 1% i 150 0 i ] 18
Notes: st -
(a)  Mr. Manfred A. Haussler resigned as non-executive director on | April 201 1. (a) Manfred A. Hausslert £ =T ——FMA
— BT EE -
(b) Ms. Chan Mee Sze was appointed as executive director on || April 201 1. (b)) REBLLIR-F——FENA+-BRZAAR
HTEE-
(c)  Mr Lam Suk Ping was appointed as executive director on | June 201 1. () MBFRERZF——F A AEZTAH
TEE-
(d) Mr.Wong Hei Lin resigned as executive director and Mr. Frank H. Miu resigned as (d) IAFRERBHAAER-F——FLALH
non-executive director on 7 July 2011, respectively. DRBTRTESRFNTES -
(e) Mr. Gary Drew Douglas was appointed as executive director on 24 October (e) Gary Drew Douglasf AR =F ——F+
2011, “tHREREANTES
(f)  Mr Au Yeung Kai Chor and Ms. Ching Yuen Man, Angela resigned as executive (N BEBEYEEREHZZLARR-F——F
directors on 25 October 201 |, respectively. TAZTLEBERITES -
(g) Mr. Ho Tak Fun was appointed as independent non-executive director on | () MRARER-F——F+-A—AEZIA

November 201 I.

BUFHTES -

011 %H% ZEEBERAA



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | BZ=E——F+ZA=+—HILFE

2. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Contd)

Ching Lam
Wong Wong Hon  AuYeung YuenMan, ~ Chung  ManSum,  Cheung

12.

EZHE (8

Total

Ding Pang Liu Frank 2010

2010 YinSen  Heilin Lk  KaiChor  Angela  Yuklun  Abert KwaiHung Xun Hong KwongSang ~ H.Mu  Manfred —%-5E
Z%-3 IBR  I%% 8h EBRY ENE  EER  MER R T EX¥  BEE 8% AMausser it
HKO00  HKFO00  HK$000  HKPOOD ~ HKS000  HKFO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKEO00  HK$OO0  HK$000
TEn  TEn  TEn  TEn  TEn TR TR TEr  TEr TR TEL  TEr  TEr  TEn
(otee)  (notec)  (noted) (noted)  (notef)  (notef) (note b) (note g)
(Mie) (MEc) (e (Md) () (Mo (Hb) (Mg
Fees o - - - - - - - - - 150 - - — 150
Other emoluments Eipfe
Selries i 585 565 55 557 527 86 8l - - - 84 7l 53 3314
Other allowances EthEg  m - — — — - — — - — — — 130 358
Retirement benefts RARTIEE
scheme contributions &3 9 9 9 9 8 4 4 - - - - - ~ 5
8 5% 5% 566 5% 90 8 — - 150 84 71 183 3874
Notes: Pt
(@) Mr Chung Yuk Lun was appointed as independent non-executive director on |4 (a) EFBEEN-_ZT-TFNATHAEZAER

(8

April 2010.

Mr Liu Kwong Sang was appointed as independent non-executive director on 19
April 2010.

Ms. Ching Yuen Man, Angela was appointed as executive director on 28 April
2010.

Mr Lam Man Sum, Albert was appointed as independent non-executive director
on 28 April 2010.

Mr. Au Yeung Kai Chor was appointed as executive director on 7 May 2010.

Mr. Cheung Kwai Hung and Mr. Ding Xun resigned as independent non-executive

directors on 28 June 2010, respectively.

Mr. Manfred A. Haussler was appointed as non-executive director on |2 October
2010.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the

directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as

compensation for loss of office. None of the directors has waived any

emoluments during the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | HZZE——F+-A=+—RHILFE

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, five (2010:
four) were directors of the Company whose emoluments are included in the
disclosures in note 12 above. The emoluments of the remaining one individual

for the year ended 31 December 2010 were as follows:

13. EEME
TEBEAFAREMECANAL K
PR (ZE-FTF : Of) AXAFE
2o REZHMECHA LMK E 225
BEN -HE_Z-TF+_A=1—
HIEFE - R —RALzMEmT :

2010
—g-%%
HK$°000
FEL

Salaries and other benefits HehHEME
Contributions to retirement RIKTE

benefits schemes

702

12

His emoluments was within the following band:

EME N N 5I8E

No. of
employees

BEAR

Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000 % 7T

DIVIDENDS
No dividend was paid or proposed for both years, nor has any dividend been

proposed since the end of the reporting period.

14. KRB
BEMEFLERNAZZRNBRE - 8
WEHRURIRE R ZR N T AIRE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | BZ=E——F+ZA=+—HILFE

I5. LOSS PER SHARE
The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to the ordinary equity

holders of the parent is based on the following data:

15. BREE

BT BRKEE AR SBERER
Ty TR

2011 2010
—B——F —ET-%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TET
Loss for the purposes of basic and HAEERER
diluted earnings per share FEERAN BB
(loss for the year attributable (RDRIEE AL
to owners of the Company) FAER) (314,081) (233,331)
2011 2010
—E-—-F —ZT-TF
’000 '000
Tk Tt
(restated)
(g=&5))
Number of shares B4 & B
Weighted average number of ordinary A BEERERENZ
shares for the purpose of basic TmRE T
earnings per share 2,165,182 409,082
The computation of diluted loss per share does not assume the conversion of BREFBRCHETERR ﬂﬁjﬁﬁ

the Company's share options and outstanding convertible bonds since their

assumed conversion would result in a decrease in loss per share.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares adopted in the calculation of
the basic and diluted loss per share for the years of 2011 and 2010 have been
adjusted to reflect the impact of issue of new shares, including rights issue,
subscription of new shares, placement and exercise of options effected during

the year ended 31 December 201 |.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | HZZE——F+-A=+—RHILFE

l6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. 9% - BERRE
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold Plant and and Motor
Buildings improvement  machinery  equipment vehicles Total
HEWE BER GA - £E
BT KiE s SELiH nE k]

HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$O00  HK$O000
TAET AT TAT TET AT TET

COST A
At | January 2010 R-ZE—ZF—H—H 33,439 5322 53,172 7,004 10,642 109,579
Exchange adjustments BE 5 1259 147 1,686 244 347 3,683
Additions NE — 691 1978 709 — 3,378
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBLR — - - (6) — (6)
Disposals HE — (1,433) — (1273) 2,791 (5,497)
At 31 December 2010 WZE—ZTF+-FE=+—H 34698 4727 56,836 6,678 8,198 11,137
Exchange adjustments 0 5 2 1,300 105 2,134 207 271 4,017
Additions NE — — 202 150 53 405
Disposals & — — — — (938) (938)
At 31 December 201 | WZE——F+-_A=+—H 35998 4,832 59,172 7,035 7,584 114,621
DEPRECIATION AND WERREEE

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES
At | January 2010 RZZE—ZF—A—H 11,664 2,564 37,663 4,600 6,229 62,720
Exchange adjustments BE W SR E 438 60 743 166 194 1,601
Provided for the year FREE 1415 87 5571 1,525 565 9,163
Disposal of subsidiaries HEME AR — — — 3) — 3)
Eliminated on disposals S 4 8 — (493) — (800) (792) (2,085)
Impairment loss for the year AN R (EE B — 1,905 6,756 544 123 9,328
At 31 December 2010 WZZE-ZTF+-F=+—H 13517 4,123 50,733 6,032 6,319 80,724
Exchange adjustments fE 5 A% 545 105 1,962 206 203 3,021
Provided for the year FREE 1,656 138 3,824 313 84 6,015
Eliminated on disposals & R — — — — (938) (938)
At 31 December 201 | WZZE——F+=-F=+—H 15718 4,366 56,519 6,551 5,668 88,822
NET BOOK VALUES REFE
At 31 December 201 | WZZ——%+-A=+—H 20280 466 2,653 484 1,916 25,799
At 31 December 2010 RZE-—ZF+-_F=+—H 21,181 604 6,103 646 1,879 30,413

onaEn 2EEBRERAE IO
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For the year ended 3| December 201 | BZ=E——F+ZA=+—HILFE

6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Contd)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a

straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Buildings Over the shorter of the terms of the lease
or 50 years

Leasehold improvement Over the shorter of the terms of the lease

or 50 years
Plant and machinery 9% - 20%
Furniture, fixtures and 18% - 20%
equipment
Motor vehicles 9% - 20%

In view of the huge operating loss experienced by the Group in health care
products, pharmaceutical products and Ruyan atomizing cigarettes business for
the year ended 3| December 2011 and 2010, the directors of the Company
reviewed the carrying value of their leasehold improvement, plant and
machinery and furniture, fixtures and equipment as at 3|1 December 2011 and
2010 based on value in use assessment, in order to assess their recoverable

amounts.

There is no impairment on property, plant and equipment for the year ended
31 December 201 |. For the year ended 31 December 2010, impairment losses
of HK$4,051,000, HK$94,000 and HK$5,183,000 were provided to health care
products, pharmaceutical products and Ruyan atomizing cigarettes business

respectively with reference to the result of the value in use assessment.

The recoverable amount for the property, plant and equipment other than
buildings was determined based on the value in use calculations covering a
detailed five-year financial budget plan approved by the Group's executive
directors. There are a number of key assumptions and estimates involved in the
preparation of the cash flow projections for the period covered by the Group's

executive directors approved financial budget plan.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | HZZE——F+-A=+—RHILFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Contd)

Value in use is derived at by discounting the expected future cash flow
projection at a 17% (2010: 17%) discount rate. The discount rate used is pre-
tax and reflects specific risks relating to the relevant segment. The Group’s
executive directors have assumed zero (2010: zero) growth rate in its budget
revenues. Other key assumptions for the value in use calculations related to
the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted sales and gross
margin, such estimation is based on the unit's past performance and

management’s expectations for the market development.

The directors of the Company assessed the recoverable amount of buildings of
the Group by reference to recent market prices for similar properties and

similar locations and considered that there is no impairment on buildings as at

31 December 2011 and 2010.

16. V¥  BERRE ®)
FREEDRIT% (2 —2F 1 17%)
MR RPBEPRARESREFEIE

HeFrERZBRRBREAN - LR
AREEIBEIHERR - KRBT

ESERAERAHREAT(CE-F
T BBEHRGRA RELE
BEEHE2 A ERROFHER
EREF - RSl REROLBME %
EREREZTHERABIEL -

ARBREENFEAREET 2 A RE
TR D2RBUME Rt AN I Hm
B YA REFR_FT——FR_F—
TET_A=1T-BYEHE-

INVESTMENT PROPERTY 17. RENE

HK$'000

TER

FAIR VALUE AVE
At | January 2010 and 31 December 2010 RZE-ZEF—-A—-ARZZE—ZTF+=-A=+—H —
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 33) WEEMEB AR (M 33) 151,009
Fair value change recognised to profit or loss R Ezm R L A FEE (6,009)
At 31 December 201 | R-—F——F+-A=+—H 145,000
The fair value of the Group's investment property at 31 December 201 | have AEER-_T——F+-A=+—HBEK

been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out on that date by Asset
Appraisal Limited, independent qualified professional valuers not connected
with the Group. Asset Appraisal Limited is a member of the Institute of Valuers.
The valuation was arrived at by reference to the discounted cash flow
projections based on estimates of future cash flows, supported by the terms of
existing lease and reasonable and supportable assumptions that represent
what knowledgeable willing parties would assume about rental income for
future leases in the light of current conditions, using discount rates that reflect
current market assessments of the uncertainty in the amount and timing of the

cash flows.

Bz ATEDREEAREE R R
EZBUGERE X (E A Asset
Appraisal LimitedEREZ% H 24 E
M{EL ° Asset Appraisal Limited& &
{BET 1% € (Institute of Valuers)& & - f&
BEN2EERKRRREREMT 2HR
RenEBAEL  AREHEH KR
REBREREXE  BHERREME
BREATERNEREHRRBESR
EeBEERR I BEREZECERTS
Az AR RREANEERAZR

%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | BZ=E——F+ZA=+—HILFE

7. INVESTMENT PROPERTY (Contd)

The Group's investment property is held under medium-term leases in Hong
Kong. All of the Group's property interests held under operating leases to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured using the fair value

model and are classified and accounted for as investment property.

As at 31 December 2011, the Group has pledged this investment property to

secure the bank borrowings granted to the Group.

8. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

17. RENZE (&)

FEBZREVEUNEERZDHAE
WRA  ARERERBRESRIEER
ﬂﬁ% MR EERONE RS R

AFERAGE  LHRBRAKRIIME
&ﬁ%¥°

R-FE-——%5+t-A=1+—H F&H

EERLSRENRERRTAREN
RITER BR

18. AIRHERE

2011 2010
—B8-—-% —E-F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TET
Available-for-sale investments comprise: AHHERERE

Unlisted equity securities in Hong Kong HEEBZFLTERAE
(note) - at cost (Msx) — 1,000 1,000
Less: Impairment loss R EEE (1,000) (1,000)

Note: The amount represents unlisted equity investment in Archnet Technology
Limited (the "Archnet”), a company incorporated in Hong Kong, which is stated
at cost less impairment loss. The Group's investment represents a holding of
20% of the ordinary shares of Archnet. Archnet is not regarded as an associate
of the Group because the Group is unable to appoint directors to sit on the

board of Archnet and hence not in a position to exercise significant influence

over its financial and operating policy decisions.

The investment has been fully impaired in prior periods.
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BRARREEBBRIER AEE 2K
B R B Archnet 2 20%E % -
RAEE KR T E S N AArchnet
B2 @AmARLArchnet 2 8175
REBRFTEEATE Bt
Archnet™i AR R E 2 B A 7

ZERECHNATHR2ERE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | HZZE——F+-A=+—RHILFE

19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

19. RAFEGFABERZZEREE

2011 2010
—g--&  -2-%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TET
Financial assets at fair value through BATEGFABRZER
profit or loss comprise: BERE
Investment in convertible instruments BERAFERA
designated at fair value through Bz ATRR
profit or loss TARE 19,430 24,450
Held-for-trading investments RIERZGREZRE 105,224 113
124,654 35,563
Analysed for reporting purpose as: HEREHA
Non-current portion FERNERER 9,730 20,000
Current portion ENERED 114,924 15,563
124,654 35,563
Held-for-trading investments comprise of equity securities listed in Hong Kong REXSABZREBERER LM Z

and their fair values are based on quoted market bid prices.

The investment in convertible instruments is designated at financial assets at

fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group acquired the
convertible bond instruments in Hong Kong Life Group Holdings Limited
("Hong Kong Life"), a Hong Kong listed company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands, and Rising Development Holdings Limited (“RDHL"), a Hong Kong
listed company incorporated in Bermuda, at a consideration of HK$20,000,000
and HK$10,025,000, respectively.

The amounts as at 3| December 2010 represented the convertible bond
instruments in ABC Communications (Holdings) Limited (“ABC"), a Hong
Kong listed company incorporated in Bermuda, and Fulbond Holdings Limited
("Fulbond"), a Hong Kong listed company incorporated in Bermuda. These
convertible bond instruments are disposed during the year ended 3|
December 201 1.

2}
BAEBS  BREZATEDERTSM
REABET °

REUNABRT AR S ERGRHRT AL
AFEFABRSZEMEE °

E-E-—FF+ - F=1+-HLF
B AEBRBRASEEEMMLZ
BERELTRAREEESEEZRERA
Al ([BEES]) RRBREZMMLLZ
ERLTAREREEERERAA
((BREEZR)OMRKESTA R
{E % 51 /20,000,0007% 7T % 10,025,000
BT

o

HE-Z-TF+-A=+—HzaHE
RERAFAER ER)BR LA (T
) REAERERDR ([EH]) 87
BREFTRE  EAREAIANER
EEMKL BEELTAR - BE-T
——F+ZA=1T—HILFE  ZEA
BREFTAERES -
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RE B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 201 HZE=

5

T—F+-ASt—RLER

9. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

(Contd)

Binomial model is used for valuation of conversion option and redemption

option of respective convertible bonds instruments. The inputs into the model

were as follows:

As at 3|1 December 201 |

19. BDAVFEFABEZEREE ©

“HEABRATAREATRRESFTAZ
BEERENBLERELMET - &
AERZ 28T

As at 3|1 December 2010

R=-B-——-F% R-Z-%2F
+=A=+—H +t=ZA=t—H
RDHL
Convertible ABC Fulbond
Hong Kong Life Bonds  Convertible  Convertible
Convertible Bonds EREE Bonds Bonds
Bisnez EBERzTHR £RzU7R BRzTHR
TR ES BRfE % R1E % R1E %
Stock price R E HK$0.35 7T HK$0.97 BT HK$071 BT HK$0.02 BT
Exercise price 1TEE HK$23.86 BT HK$1.00 BT HK$0.95 BT HK$0.01 & T
Volatility (note a) IE (PiEEa) 67% 84% 53% 58%
Option life (note b) EEREE (HEb) 44 years®F 28 vyears® 095 year F 2 years &
Risk-free rate (note c) EmREEAE (T c) 0.845% 0.496% 0.34% 0.58%
Notes: B 5T
(a)  Expected volatility was determined by calculating the historical volatility of the (a) TEHRKBEABAERSLED EREH
share prices of Hong Kong Life, RDHL, ABC and Fulbond. Bl ENREARBZES RIEE
Fo

(b) Expected life was the remaining life of the respective options.

(c)  The risk free is determined by reference to the Hong Kong Government Bond

Yield.

During the year, HK$10,295,000 loss (2010: HK$9,700,000 gain) on change in

fair value of investment in convertible instruments designated at fair value

through profit or loss was charged or credited to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | HZZE——F+-A=+—RHILFE

20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 20. EREE
The intangible assets represent technology know-hows for the production of BVEERKE=ZABA  IRAEE
pharmaceutical product which were acquired from third parties and are AEARMAHE At iREHTAE
amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of 3 to 5 H-znFUNEREEH FRBEE
years from the date on which the technology know-hows were available for M2 BEEERM A -
use by the Group.
Technical
know-hows
BT &
HK$'000
TET
COST DEN
At | January 2010 R-_ZE—ZF—-H—H 12,358
Exchange adjustments b 3 % 466
At 31 December 2010 and 3| December 2011 R=F—FH+_A=+—-HR=-F——F+=-A=+—H 12,824
AMORTISATION 3
At | January 2010 R-_ZE—ZF—H—H 11,628
Exchange adjustments BE 5 FA 443
Charge for the year FRBR 753
At 31 December 2010 and 3| December 2011 R-ZE—ZF+_A=+—-HAR-ZT——F+-A=+—H 12,824
CARRYING VALUES fREE
At 31 December 2010 and 3| December 2011 RZE—ZF+-_A=+—BR-ZT——F+-A=+—H —
21. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 21. BAHEERE
The prepaid lease payments comprise: ENHEFERRE
2011 2010
i —T-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TRET TET
Leasehold land outside Hong Kong: BEMIINZEE L
Medium-term lease AR 4 2,772 2,757
Analysed for reporting purposes as: RERBOD -
Current portion ENERER 73 82 79
Non-current portion FERNERES & 2,690 2,678
2,772 2,757
The leasehold land is amortised on a straight-line basis over the remaining HELTHRBENRGTFRANERES
term of the lease. 5 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | BZ=E——F+ZA=+—HILFE

22. INVENTORIES 22. 7§
2011 2010
—g—-%  —T-%%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Raw materials JR# 5,489 26,650
Work in progress E®m 634 -
Finished goods BUPX 2,364 8,728
8,487 35,378
23. TRADE RECEIVABLES 23. BWEZRE
2011 2010
—g--&  —2-2%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT TET
Trade receivables JEYE 5 8RR 149,792 143,986
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts o RERE (145,608) (138,904)
4,184 5,082
The Group allows an average credit period from 60 to 270 days to its trade REERHFEEFEFPETH602270H
customers. The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables net of ZEEH - UTARREHRBERE
allowance for doubtful debts presented based on the invoice date at the end BHZVEKRE ZEE (B RERB)
of the reporting period: JEEE ST
2011 2010
—g—-%  —T-%%
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FET
0 to 60 days 0260H 1,258 822
61 to 90 days 61290 H 42 1,361
91 to 180 days 91 2180 H 2,884 2,899
4,184 5,082
The Group has policy of allowance for bad and doubtful debts which is based REBREAE—EREERENRE  ZH
on the evaluation of collectability and age of accounts and on management's RILBEET D RERREET TG
judgement including credit worthiness and past collection history of each UEBEEEE HE (BRBEURFEY
customer. R RBE R RACH) Ml -
Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the potential RNENTRFEPH - REEFTHEP
customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by customer Limits attributed JEEEENETRPEE LR c A&
to customers are reviewed regularly. BTrHENGATEPZEERE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | HZZE——F+-A=+—RHILFE

23. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)

The receivables with a carrying amount of HK$4,184,000 (2010:
HK$5,082,000) which are neither past due nor impaired at the end of the
reporting date for which the Group believes that the amounts are considered
recoverable because the receivables are related to a number of independent

customers that have good repayment records with the Group.

At 31 December 2011 and 2010, there is no trade receivable balance is past
due at the reporting date for which the Group has not provided for

impairment loss.

In determining the recoverability of the trade receivables, the Group considers
any changes in the credit quality of the trade receivables from the date credit
was initially granted up to the end of the reporting period. Accordingly, the
directors believe that there is no further credit provision required in excess of

the allowance for bad and doubtful debts.

23. BWEZRE (&)

FREE /4,184,0008 L (ZE—FF -
5,082,000/ 7T) 2 e YR IB M B HA AR
MABHMARE  AEEHEETKRE
ZFE RARERFEREETEY
BP ZEEPRASEBRARMER
ok o

RZF-——FURZFT-FTFFTZA=
T8 FEETREREZREARS
RBERHD @M MAKELEMAEL
B R R -

REERKEZRA WAL - &
SEERENEIRBEENEREER
EHEREHRZAMEEERZL -
At - EFRA - BREERER BN
o BAFLEMEERE -

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts REBEZEH
2011 2010
—E-—-F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FAT
Balance at beginning of the year FEEH 138,904 125,132
Impairment losses recognised ERAREEE 1,676 13,229
Amounts recovered during the year FREREFKIE (203) (4,167)
Exchange adjustments BE R EE 5,231 4710
Balance at end of the year FRIER 145,608 138,904

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually impaired trade
receivables, which were either in the severe financial difficulties or overdue for
a long period time. The Group has made full allowance on these receivables

and considered that they are generally not recoverable.

AERBEERENCEBEAMARE
HEAZCHERKEZRE - A5H
ERZSRUFALHERE  LRRZ
FHRR— R -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | BZ=E——F+ZA=+—HILFE

24. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 24. e BARAFEREMERTE

2011 2010
—g--%  -T-%TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT TET
Deposits Be 2,487 1,659
Prepayments BN IE 3,379 2,531
Other receivables (note) Hio e sam (fer) 1,012 1546
6,878 5736
Note: Other receivables are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. st - EthRiGEAEER 28 REAR
BREEE -
2011 2010
—g--%  ~T-%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT THET
Other receivables H b YA 36,946 36,182
Less: Allowance B (35,934) (34,636)
Other receivables (net of provision) Hith EURIE (MRE ) 1,012 1546
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RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | HZZE——F+-A=+—RHILFE

24. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)

24. B AAREARAMERRE (@)

Movement in the allowance for bad and doubtful debts for other receivables HEWREZRERR B2
2011 2010
—g--%  -3-3F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER FET
Balance at beginning of the year FEEH 34,636 6,064
Charged for the year FAXH = 28,344
Exchange adjustments BE 3,8 B 1,298 228
Balance at end of the year FREH 35,934 34,636

AREBRBEERENEHECEBRREN
BRESBAEA 2 EEYKRE - K

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually impaired other

receivables, which were either in the severe financial difficulties or overdue for

a long period time. The Group has made full allowance on these other SEHCHZSHEMBRERTSEE
receivables and considered that they are generally not recoverable. W RRZERE R -
25. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 25. TEEMIA
2011 2010
—g--5  -T-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TRER TET
Derivative financial instruments TEERMIARE
consist of the following items: ToER :
Call Option/Put Option REERR R HE 5,689 —
Conversion option derivatives of Ak ER 2 BREE
convertible bonds BITETHR — 377
Total derivative financial instruments TR I ARE
(shown as current liabilities) (mREBBEMT) 5,689 377
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RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | BZ=E——F+ZA=+—HILFE

25. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

On 8 August 2011 ("Date of Completion”), Nation Wealth Holdings Limited
("NWHL"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, acquired the entire
equity interests in Central Town Limited ("CTL") from an independent third
party (the “Vendor”) and entered into an option agreement with the Vendor at
a total consideration of HK$ 117,000,000 (the “Acquisition”). Details of the

Acquisition are disclosed in note 33.

The terms of the option agreement are that (i) the Vendor granted a call
option to NWHL to require the Vendor to sell the entire equity interest in
Apex Corporate Investments Limited (“Chinese Medical Clinic") (“Option
Shares™) and to assign the shareholders loans of Chinese Medical Clinic
("Option Shareholders Loans”) to NWHL (collectively known as “Call
Option™); and (i) NWHL granted a put option to the Vendor to require
NWHL to purchase the Option Shares and Option Shareholders Loans
(collectively known as "“Put Option™). Chinese Medical Clinic is currently

wholly-owned subsidiary of the Vendor.

The Call Option and Put Option are exercisable within 5 years from the Date
of Completion conditioning upon the completion of the Vendor’s contribution
of an interest free loan or by way of equity of HK$25 million to Chinese
Medical Clinic. As at 31 December 2011, the Vendor's interest free loan to
Chinese Medical Clinic is less than HK$25 million and both Call Option and
Put Option is not exercisable as at 31 December 201 1. The option exercise

price is determined with the following conditions:

* if Chinese Medical Clinic's audited results for the year ending 31 March
2012 or any accounting period subsequent thereto has not been

released and issued, the option exercise price will be HK$25,000,000; and

* if Chinese Medical Clinic's audited results for the year ending 31 March
2012 or any accounting period subsequent thereto has been released

and issued,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | HZZE——F+-A=+—RHILFE

25. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd) 25. fTEE€MIA (&)
— in the case of the exercise of the Call Option, the option exercise - BEIEREHEBELT - B
price will be the higher of HK$25 million; or (ii) the lower of 10 TRERATHEZREE
times earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation 25,000,000 7T+ K (i) A
("EBITDA") or HK$75 million; and B BE - EREHENEN

([EBITDAJ) 10f%5% 75,000,000
BTZBEE Rk

— in the case of the exercise of the Put Option, the option exercise - BEITERLHERLT B
price will be the higher of: (i) HK$25 million; or (i) the lower of 5 AFEEAATME RS E
times EBITDA or HK$75 million. (i) 25,000,0007% 7T : 3k (ii)
EBITDA 5f&%3(75,000,0007%
TZBEE -
The fair value of the Call Option and Put Option is approximately RERERDCHERTK AR
HK$6,270,000 at Date of Completion. 1B4946,270,000/& 7T °
The movement of the Call Option and Put Option during the year is set out FRADBHENDLHEZZEHNT
below:
HK$’000
TERT
Granted at the Date of Completion R TER B B T (6,270)
Changes in fair value N EZEH 581
At 31 December 201 | R_ZE——F+-A=+—H (5,689)
The fair value of Call Option and Put Option are calculated using the RERERDEHENRFER KA
Binominal Pricing Model at the Date of Completion and 31 December 201 1. BR_FE-——F+A=t—B&KAZ
The inputs into the model were as follows: BAEBREAGME - WARA 228
T
Call Option and Put Option
RENRRR LR
As at As at Date of
31 December 2011 Completion
—2--F
+t=RA=t-H Rk A
Exercise price 128 HK$25,000,000 7 7T HK$25,000,000 7 7T
Business value (note a) $%EE (MiTa) HK$22,000,000 7 7T HK$22,000,000 7 7T
Expected volatility (note b) TREKE (FiEEb) 41.354% 36.03%
Expected life (note c) REFR (s c) 4.6 years F 5 years F
Risk-free rate (note d) ERBRME (MEd) 0.943% 0.922%

wiEn L2REERERAET IR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | BZ=E——F+ZA=+—HILFE

25.

26.

DRAGONITE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)
Notes:

(@)  The business value is determined based on the future discounted cashflow of the

operation of Chinese Medical Clinic.

(b)  Expected volatility for options is based on historical daily share price movements
of comparable listed companies in the same industry over a historical period of

4.6 years (Date of Completion: 5 years).

(c) Expected life was the expected remaining life of the Call Option and the Put
Option.

(d)  The risk-free rate is determined by reference to the yield of Exchange Fund Bills.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, a gain of HK$581,000 was
recognised in respect of the changes in fair values of derivative financial

instruments.

Conversion option derivatives on Third Convertible Bonds (as defined in note
30) of approximately HK$912,000 are recognised as at 31 December 2010
and fair value change of derivatives of HK$377,000 is credit to profit or loss
during the year 31 December 201 1. Details of the conversion option

derivatives are disclosed in note 30.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

At 31 December 2011, there were bank balances and cash denominated in
Renminbi (“RMB") amounting to approximately HK$7,610,000 (2010:
HK$7,121,000) and carry interest at market rates which range from 0.001% to
0.36% (2010: 0.36% to 0.72%) per annum. RMB is not freely convertible into
other currencies. Other bank balances and cash are denominated in Hong
Kong dollars which carry interest at market rates which range from 0.001% to

0.06% (2010:0.001% to 0.06%) per annum.

2011 Annual Report
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RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | HZZE——F+-A=+—RHILFE

27. TRADE PAYABLES 27. BNEZRE
The aged analysis of trade payables presented based on the invoice date at the RTARBRERREZEZBHILFIEM
end of the reporting period is as follows: BHREZRRDI

2011 2010

—e—-%  -T-Tf

HK$’000 HK$'000

TER TET

0 to 30 days 0Z30H 51 51

31 to 60 days 312 60H 1,006 —

61 to 90 days 61290 H 65 —

Over 90 days but less than | year 90 HIA EEAREI—% 1,226 517

Over | year —FHE 3,924 4,079

6,272 4,647

28. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 28. ESTREREtE(RE

2011 2010

—E——f —E-FF

HK$°000 HK$'000

TERT TET

Other payables H At FE T BR IR 12,410 22,009
Accruals JERTHR 16,567 16,134
Customer deposits BERE 4,688 3,126
33,665 41,269
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RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | BZ=E——F+ZA=+—HILFE

29. BORROWINGS

29. &

2011 2010
—E-—F —_T-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT THET
Secured bank borrowings BEMRITER 27,342 —
Unsecured other borrowings B E {5 3R 65,000 5,000
92,342 5,000
Carrying amount repayable ERN—FNEEZ
within one year fREE 65,000 5,000
Carrying amount of bank borrowings BARBEHRE—FA
not repayable BRERENERE
within one year from BEBER BRI
the end of the reporting period but e EREE
contain a repayment on demand clause GIANREEE)
(shown under current liabilities) 25,693 —
Carrying amount of bank ARN—FRNEEER
borrowings repayable BERNERE
within one year and contain BEBER BRI
a repayment on demand clause fEREREE 1,649 —
92,342 5,000
Amounts due within one year shown under SIHERBBEL—FR
current liabilities IMeHE (92,342) (5,000)
Borrowings comprise: e e
Variable-rate borrowings FRER 27,342 —
Fixed-rate borrowings EEMER 65,000 5,000
92,342 5,000
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | HZZE——F+-A=+—RHILFE

BORROWINGS (Cont'd)

At as 31 December 2011, bank borrowings amounting to approximately
HK$27,342,000 (2010: nil) are variable-rate borrowings which carry interest at
Hong Kong Prime Rate less 2% per annum. Unsecured other borrowings of
approximately HK$65,000,000 (2010: nil) carries a fixed interest rate of 5%

per annum.

As at 31 December 2010, unsecured other borrowings amounting to
approximately HK$5,000,000 are fixed-rate borrowings which carry interest at

24% per annum.

As at 31 December 2011, bank borrowings of HK$27,342,000 were secured
by investment property of the Group in note |7.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

On 31 July 2007, the Company issued HK$ 151,000,000 convertible bonds (the
“First Convertible Bonds") bearing coupons of 2.5% per annum payable semi-

annually in arrear and matures on 31| July 2012.

On 7 August 2009, the bondholders and the Company come to an agreement
to amend the terms of the First Convertible Bonds (thereafter the First
Convertible Bonds with amended terms are referred as the “Second
Convertible Bonds"). The approval of amendment was granted by the Stock
Exchange on 14 August 2009 and the restructuring of First Convertible Bonds
was completed on 28 August 2009.

The key terms of the Second Convertible Bonds are summarised below:

*  the principal bearing coupon was amended from 2.5% to 4% per annum

payable semi-annually in arrears.

*  the maturity date was amended from 31 July 2012 to 31 July 2010 (the
“Amended Maturity Date").

29.

30.

a3 ()

SE-—FTZASt-R - RAEKR
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c BEMERBERS
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FEFFEE%E S

T+ -R=+—H EHEE
b tE 3 495,000,000 TAEBET &
ERE4%EH B, o

“T——F+-FB=+—H " BIEX
27,342,0007% ;L BT sE 17Tl R B %
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30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Contd)

the Second Convertible Bonds could be converted into the Company's
shares at: HK$0.75 per share if the conversion right was exercised during
the period from the date of restructuring of the First Convertible Bonds
to 30 October 2009; HK$0.7 per share if the conversion right was
exercised during the period from | November 2009 to 3| December
2009; and HK$0.65 per share if the conversion right was exercised during
| January 2010 to the Amended Maturity Date.

unless previously redeemed or converted into the Company's shares, the
Company shall redeem the Second Convertible Bonds at 147.47% of the
principal amount of the Second Convertible Bonds on the Amended

Maturity Date.

the Company may redeem the Second Convertible Bonds, in whole or in
part, at any time at early redemption price calculated based on
redemption vyields (“Redemption Yields"). The Redemption Yields for the
period from | August 2009 to 30 September 2009, | October 2009 to
31 December 2009 and | January 2010 to the Amended Maturity Date
are 20%, 22.5% and 25% per annum respectively.

The bondholder would have the right to early redeem the outstanding
convertible bonds at a premium of the principal amount of such

convertible bond at anytime prior to maturity.

Conversion on Second Convertible Bonds

On 3 February 2010, a bondholder served a conversion notice to the

Company for the conversion of 18,910,000 shares of the Second Convertible

Bonds at HK$0.65 per share at an agreed principal amount of HK$12,291,000.
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RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | HZZE——F+-A=+—RHILFE

30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (Contd)

Redemption on Second Convertible Bonds

On 10 June 2010, the bondholders served a redemption notice to the
Company for the fully redemption of the remaining Second Convertible Bonds
at an agreed redemption consideration of HK$153,681,000 being the
outstanding principal together with interest and redemption premium. The

completion of the redemption took place on |7 June 2010.

The movement of liability component and conversion option derivatives of

Second Convertible Bonds for the periods is set out below:

30. TRRESRITEEMIA (&)

FofTBRRESRD

:gffi/\ﬁ+5 %H-‘ﬁ/\ﬁzﬁ
NRIBHBEBN  ZREHEBELL
{&153,681,0007 7T (B0 1# R AN & LA T Fl
EREERGE) 2 EE @ﬁ%TZ ZHA
BRES  ZBEER_Z-ZTFSAT
+HREK °

%W “HABRREFCERESD kA
EEETETANEHNT

Liability Derivative
component component Total
AEHs  TEIAHD et
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000
TEL TET TET
As at | January 2010 R-ZZ—ZEF—-HA—H 152,000 — 152,000
First conversion Bi{EE R (12,291) — (12,291)
Interest charge MEXH 13972 — 13972
Second redemption £ (EED (153,681) — (153,681)

As at 31 December 2010 and RZZE-ZTF+ZA
31 December 201 | =t—BAR-E——F

+-A=+—H — — —

On 22 June 2010, the Company issued HK$75,000,000 zero-coupon
convertible bonds (the “Third Convertible Bonds”). The Third Convertible
Bonds are denominated in HKD. It entitled the holders to convert them into
ordinary shares of the Company at any time between the date of issue of the
notes and their settlement date on 21 June 2012 at a conversion price of
HKS$0.10 per convertible loan note. If the notes have not been converted, they
will be redeemed on 21 June 2012 at par. The conversion price is adjusted to

HK$0.675 per share after rights issue and share consolidated.

ZE-TFXNAZTZB  ARAIET
75,000,000 L Z & EWH&%%% ([%£=
HABRRER]) - EZHABRRESRN
%ﬁﬂ@*ﬁ%%ﬁA%ﬂmfﬁﬁﬁ
ABRRE-_T——F A=+—H23
EEBIEEAER  RERITARER
ZRON0BTZHRREBERARLAL
AR - MEBEABR W@%‘——

FRAZT—HERAEER - RER

B &R EHBERERO. 675/%

FI I

011 %H% ZEEBERAA
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RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | BZ=E——F+ZA=+—HILFE

30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (Contd)

Redemption on Second Convertible Bonds (Cont'd)

The net proceeds received from the issue of the Third Convertible Bonds
contain liability component and conversion option. The conversion option is
not closely related to the liability component and is classified as a derivative
because the conversion will not result in the Company issuing a fixed number
of shares in settlement of a fixed amount of liability component. Conversion
option is measured at fair value with change in fair value recognised in profit

or loss.

Conversion on Third Convertible Bonds

On 22,29 and 30 June 2010, the bondholders served conversion notices to
the Company for conversion of 250,000,000, 100,000,000 and 350,000,000
ordinary shares of the Company, respectively, of the Third Convertible Bonds
at HK$0.1 per share at a consideration of HK$70,000,000. The liability
component of the Third Convertible Bonds was HK$51,949,000 which was
stated at the amortised cost using the effective interest method and the fair
value of the derivative components of the Third Convertible Bonds at the date

of Conversion was HK$18,051,000.

Redemption on Third Convertible Bonds

On Il August 2011, the Company served a redemption notice to the
bondholder for the fully redemption of the remaining Third Convertible Bonds
at an agreed redemption consideration of HK$5,000,000 being the outstanding

principal.
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30. TRRESFRITEESHMIA (@)

FoHTUBRRESRE (B)
ROFHRARREFZAEFRFR
BRAGBHI RAREEE - AREE
BYTRAEHIRINEE - DEAT
YTE RAREBEBRISEHAL
AIBRTETHA 2RO ABENRERD
ZEBRR - BHBPERERAVE
B EQVEZEINBRER -

FoHURARESER

ZE-TEXAZTZH -ZThBR
=TH BEBREARAARELER
@A BRBARET0,000,0008 T 0 5
RINERONBTEE =S ATRRESSE
¥ % 250,000,000 * 100,000,0008% &
350,000,0008% &2 B & @A - S =#t7]
BMRESZAEIHNH K S51,949,000%
L IRE R A E R KRR
ME=HARREFTED S RERA
H2 A F{E 518,051,000 7T °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | HZZE——F+-A=+—RHILFE

30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL 3. TRRBEHRITEESHMIA (@)
INSTRUMENTS (Contd)
Redemption on Third Convertible Bonds (Cont'd) E-HTRRESER (£)
The movement of the liability component and conversion option derivatives of HAS=#HAARES 28BS kit
the Third Convertible Bonds for the periods is set out as below: BRESETETAMEHNT
Conversion
Liability option
component derivatives Total
BMPLERE
BE#HD PTETE Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fi#7 T FiE7
As at | January 2010 KRZE-TF—-—H—H — — —
Issue during the year FRNET 55,660 19,340 75,000
Second conversion £ (EHeEn (51,949) (18,051) (70,000)
Interest charged ﬂ BX i 425 — 425
Gain arising on change of fair value NHEEEMENE — (912) (912)
As at 31 December 2010 R-T-—FF+-A=1t—H 4136 377 4513
Interest charged ME X H 864 — 864
Redemption Em (5,000) — (5,000)
Gain arising on change of fair value NEEEHMERE — (377) (377)
As at 31 December 201 | R_ZE——%+-_A=+—H — — —
The methods and assumptions applied for the valuation of the Second and F_RRE=HARREFHEMER
Third Convertible Bonds are as follows: ZHERBRIOT -
(1) Valuation of liability component (1) BEBI2HE
At the date of issue, the liability component was recognised at fair value. RETH BRFSRATER
The fair value of liability component was calculated based on the present ReBEFD A TERGNET
value of the contractually determined stream of future cash flows URERSRBER s RARRERE
discounted at the required yield, which was determined with reference to ZHREFE MART 2 RaEE|
the average vield of notes with similar credit rating and remaining time to SEZRERNERTRRAT IS
maturity. In subsequent periods, the liability component is carried at FRIZEEZ FARREMER -
amortised cost using the effective interest method. The effective interest REEEE BEBOREHKA
rate of the liability component of Second Convertible Bonds and Third EBRARESIR - £ 4tk Hﬁ
Convertible Bonds are 24% and 16.1% respectively. EHEREZMABRRESEES

7 BB FIED R E24%K16.1% °

wiEn 2EERERAT P
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RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | BZ=E——F+ZA=+—HILFE

30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Contd)

30.

TRRESFRITESRIA ()

(2) Valuation of conversion option (2) BREEREZME
(i) For Second Convertible Bonds () BE_MABRRESTZ
Binomial model is used for valuation of conversion option of the “EARAANE R RR
Second Convertible Bonds. The inputs into the model were as EFRREREZME - BA
follows: BRAZ280T -

3 February 2010 10 June 2010

—E-FF —T-FF

—A=H NATH

Stock price (B HK$0.25 & 7T HK$0.1 1 7T
Exercise price 1B (note) (PH=E) (note) (Pf3E)
Volatility L] 30% 30%
Option life EEREH 0.5 years F 0 year &
Risk-free rate BEBRHE 0.18% 0%
Note: HK$0.75 per share from 28 August 2009 to 30 October 2009; Mz : —BETAENA=-TN\A

HK$0.7 per share from | November 2009 to 3| December 2009;
and HK$0.65 per share from | January 2010 to the Amended
Maturity Date.
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RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | HZZE——F+-A=+—RHILFE

30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (Contd)

(2)

€)

Valuation of conversion option (Cont'd)

(i)~ For Third Convertible Bonds

Binomial model is used for valuation of conversion option of the

Third Convertible Bonds. The inputs into the model were as

30.

ARRESRITEEHIA (B

(2) BREEE2GE(E

(i) BEZMALRESNE

“HEABEARRE =R AT
BEFBBGEREZHE WA

follows: BRAZ280T -
22 June 2010 31 December 2010
—F-FF —F-FF
NAZtZH +TZA=1+—H
Stock price KB HK$0.1 7T HK$0.46 /& 7T
Exercise price 1TEE HK$0.1 &7 HK$0.692 AT
Volatility L] 45% 51%
Option life EEREH 2 years 1.5 years F
Risk-free rate R B M 0.62% 0.46%

Valuation of issuer and bondholders early redemption options for

Second Convertible Bonds

Binomial model is used for valuation of conversion option of the Second

Convertible Bonds. The inputs into the model were as follows:

(3) BOARBEEAAF-HTRR
BHRERFROEER A

THEABABRE _HABRRES
MECERRZAE AR L2

g

3 February 2010 10 June 2010

—E-%F —E-%F

—A=H NATH

Stock price KB HK$0.25 & 7T HK$0.1 1 7T

Volatility (note a) WIE (BiEEa) 33% 33%

Option life (note b) EEEEE (MiEb) 0.5 years & 0 year &

Risk-free rate (note c) mRFE (HiEc) 0.18% 0%
01 4H ZEBEBERAXA
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RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | BZ=E——F+ZA=+—HILFE

30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL

31

DRAGONITE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

INSTRUMENTS (Contd)

(2) Valuation of conversion option (Cont'd)

Notes:

(a) Expected volatility was determined by calculating the historical volatility of

the Company’s share price.

(b)  Expected life was the remaining life of the respective options.

(c) The risk-free is determined by reference to the Hong Kong Government

Bond Yield.

During the year, HK$377,000 (2010: HK$912,000) was recognised in

profit or loss as change in fair value of derivative financial instruments.

SHARE CAPITAL

31

30. TRRESFRITEESHMIA (@)

(2) BREERE2GE(E)

(a) BHREEAFTEALFAKEZ
BEKBETE -

(o) BHFHAEHMEREIRTH

HE o
(c) ERRAEXDZERERFNES
ZREE-

R 377,0008 7 (ZF—FF
912,000 T) REEEER AITES
BIAZRTEES -

. Rx

Number of shares Share capital

Bin 2 B R
'000 HK$'000
Tk TET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each BREMBEI0BTZEBR
Authorised: ERE
At | January 2010 —E-TF—-H—H 2,000,000 200,000
Increase in authorised share capital (note i) EERAREM (M) 8,000,000 800,000
At 31 December 2010 and RZFE-FF+-A=+—-8EkK
31 December 201 | —F——%+-A=1—H 10,000,000 1,000,000
Issued: BT -
At | January 2010 WZE-—ZTF—H—H 1,513,360 151336
Issue of subscription shares (note ii) BITRBERNG (M) 332,721 33272
Exercise of share options (note iii) TTEERERE (MIEE i) 297,696 29,770
Conversion of convertible bonds (note iv) BhORRES (HMEiv) 718910 71,891
Rights issue (note v) g (M v) 831,803 83,180
Share Consolidation (note vi) Betn & 6 (BaE vi) (3.602,128) (360213)
At 31 December 2010 R-E-FF+-_A=+—H 92,362 9,236
Rights issue (note vii) A% (B & vii) 1,847,245 184,725
Exercise of share options (note viii) TR (M vii) 9,230 923
Issue of subscription shares (note ix) BOOREBERG (M) 18,470 1,847
Issue of placing shares (note x) BITRERD (MEEx) 750,000 75,000
At 31 December 201 | R-F——F+-A=+—H 2,717,307 271,731
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | HZZE——F+-A=+—RHILFE

SHARE CAPITAL (Contd)
Notes:

@)

(i)

(i)

On 5 May 2010, the authorised share capital of the Company was increased from
HK$200,000,000 divided into 2,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.10 each to
HK$1,000,000,000 divided into 10,000,000,000 shares by creation of an additional
8,000,000,000 shares.

On |5 December 2010, the Company performed a share capital re-organization
involving every 40 issued and unissued shares of par value of HK$0.! each be
consolidated into | consolidated share by cancelling a sum of HK$3.9 per
consolidated share in issue. Moreover, authorised share capital of the Company is
then being increased from HK$25,000,000 divided into 250,000,000 adjusted
shares to HK$1,000,000,000 divided into 10,000,000,000 adjusted shares by the
creation of an additional 9,750,000,000 new adjusted shares.

On 22 June 2010, 332,721,166 new ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.10
each were issued by subscription pursuant to the subscription agreement dated
I'l' June 2010 entered into between the Company and an individual investor of

the Company, at a price of HK$0.10 per share.

On 2 March 2010, 28 April 2010 and 10 June 2010, share options for 1,000,000,
130,336,000 and 166,360,583 of HK$0.10 each were exercised at the exercised
price of HK$0.167, HK$0.200 and HK$0.109 respectively.

31 R&
OEE

(i)

(if)

(if)

(%)

R-E—-TERARA - EEEHREN
8,000,000,0008 fz 3 - A QEATE
B A& @ 200,000,000 T (5 A
2,000,000,000%% Z & E{E0.105 T 2
% 17 ) # % 1,000,000,000% 7T (% A&
10,000,000,000/% %17 ) °

R-Z-FTE+-A+HA  KAA#
TRASE  PREBIREREEN
AORGIOETMEFIREREE
0BT ZEBTRAETRHAHE
MAGRG « toh - BBIELRBI
9,750,000,0000% ¥ 4& AR 5 - K&
D A A E R A B 25,000,000 T
(% & 250,000,0000 & A& K %)
# = 1,000,000,000% & (2 A
10,000,000,0008% 4% 38 &% 153) -

RIE-FEXA-+-0 ARAKE
AfA-Z-—ZSF AT —HALXLH
BARAREAREET L2 RE HE
PL& B 0107 T 2 B 18 B 1
332,721,166 N 2 B B R E E0.10/%
TLZHE®R -

RZZ-THE=F-H RZT—ZF
WMAZ+NBRR=ZZ-ZF A+
B TEES BRI A0.1678T  0.200
A7 R%0.109% 7T 9 AI471£1,000,00013
B # 130,336,000 B B #E &
166,360,58317 B f 2

011 %H% ZEEBERAA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | BZ=E——F+ZA=+—HILFE

31

DRAGONITE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

SHARE CAPITAL (Contd)
Notes: (Cont'd)

(iv)

)

(vi)

(vii)

On 9 February 2010, 18,909,832 new ordinary shares of the Company of
HK$0.10 each were issued upon the partial conversion of Second Convertible
Bonds (as defined in note 30) issued pursuant to the Subscription Agreement.
Convertible Bonds with aggregate principal amount of HK$12,291,000 were
converted into 18,909,832 ordinary shares of the Company at a conversion price
of HK$0.65 per share.

On 22, 29 and 30 June 2010, 250,000,000, 100,000,000 and 350,000,000 new
ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.10 each were issued upon the partial
conversion of Third Convertible Bonds (as defined in note 30) pursuant to the
Subscription Agreement, respectively. Convertible Bonds with aggregate principal
amount of HK$70,000,000 were converted into 700,000,000 ordinary shares of

the Company at a conversion price of HK$0.10 per share.

On 3 June 2010, the Company allotted and issued 831,802,916 shares by way of
rights issue at a subscription price of HK$0.| per rights share on the basis of one

rights share for every two shares then held.

On |5 December 2010, the Company carried out a Share Consolidation involving
every 40 shares of par value of HK$0.10 each be consolidated into | consolidated

share of par value of HK$4 each (the “Consolidated Share”).

A capital reduction whereby upon the Share Consolidation becoming effective,
the nominal value of all the issued Consolidated Share shall be reduced from
HK$4 each to HK$0.1 each, and the issued and paid up capital of the Company
shall be cancelled to the extent of HK$3.9 per Consolidated Share in issue.

On 28 January 201 I, the Company allotted and issued 1,847,245,240 shares by
way of rights issue at a subscription price of HK$0.22 per rights share on the basis

of twenty rights share for every share held on 7 January 201 I.
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(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

RZZE—ZF-ANE  ARAERE
HEROEAE M BERES (BF
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250,000,0008% - 100,000,0008 &
350,000,000/% ° A 4 £ %870,000,000
BTz AREFRERESTR010%E
JUE A A A § 700,000,0000% & E
% o

RIZ-ZFXAZR  ARFAUHRE
HAEERHEMBR N TR — BB
Befn 2 BRI REE SR AR 701
B R % R #17831,802,916/ AR 17 °

RZE-TF+_A+IHE  ARAE
TRGBAEH - INZ40BSREE. 104
TZBRBEHAE-REREGEIETZ
ARG (&HEKRG]) -

KD st EMEETRALR - AR
ROAMBOMOREASRIETAE
BROVERL  MARRDETRAR
BAFERERTA G R EH3.9%
Lo

R-ZZE——F—A=+N\B  AAF
HRARNER T ——F—ALHEEH
BE-RERHATEE - TRERRH 2E
EAREEGREMRIR0.2278 T i &
R EE1T1,847,245, 2408 B 17



31

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | HZZE——F+-A=+—RHILFE

SHARE CAPITAL (Contd)

Notes: (Cont'd)

(viii) On 31 March 2011, share options for 9,230,000 of HK$0.| each were exercised
at the exercise price of HK$0.182.

(ix)  On 12 April 2011, 18,470,000 new ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.!
each were issued by subscription pursuant to the subscription agreement dated
30 March 2011 entered into between the Company and an individual third party,
at a price of HK$0.16 per share.

(x)  On 4 August 2011, 750,000,000 new ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.1
each were issued by placing. Pursuant to the placing agreement dated 4 May 2011,
the placing price was HK$0.145 per share. The placing price was amended to
HK$0.1 per share pursuant to the supplement placing agreement dated 28 June
201 1.

All the shares issued during the year ended 31 December 2011 rank pari

passu with the then issued shares of the Company in all respect.

3. R&E (8)
st (&)
(vii) RZFE——F=A=+—H UIEE

(ix)

0.18278 7T 17 1£9,230,0000) & ik @ &
0BT 2 FERIE o

RZZ——E0F+-H KAQFEH
BRAMA-T——FZA=+HHMARD
AREAE=RITUZ RBHEATR
BHo16E Tz BERREMET
18,470,000R BREE0 1AL L3 E
AR

RZZ——EN\AMA  ADREBE
£347750,000,0000% SR EE0. 178 T
ZHERR - REBHA-T——FH
ANBrERERE REBAESR
0145387 - REEREABA T —
—FERAZTNBZHARERZEE
AER0AET -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | BZ=E——F+ZA=+—HILFE

32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Equity-settled share option scheme

The Company's share option scheme (the “Scheme”), was adopted pursuant to

a resolution passes on 30 May 2003 for the primary purpose of providing

incentives to participants, including executive directors of the Company and its

subsidiaries. Under the Scheme, the Board of Directors of the Company may

grant options to eligible employees, including directors of the Company and its

subsidiaries and to consultants, to subscribe for shares in the Company.

The following table discloses movements in the Company's share options

during the year:

32. URGBAER 2R
UREGEE 2 RRESS

RAmBREE ([ZEH8)) - DRE
CETZERACZTHBBZRAERMD
i TEENARSZEE (BREARQH
REMBARNTES) RHRE - R
ZitEl  ARREZEARNAERESR
(BRALAREMBARES) RER
REBRE  ARBARARD

TRAEBAAAEABRELE

Number Number Number Number
Number of of share of share of share Number of share
Number of ~ Number of ~share options ~ Number of ~ No. of share options options options of share options
share options ~ share options  exercised  share options options granted  exercised adjusted  options lapsed outstanding Exercise
Category of Date of share asat granted during during adjusted during asat during during during during asat price per
participants options granted | anuary 2010 theperiod  theperiod  the period | January 2011 theperiod  the period  theperiod  the period 31 December 2011 Exercise period  share option
(notei) (note v)
NZ5-3% i
i i s i Ho%-- i i s % tZA=1-H
BEENE RtEheE Rtz Kb fige @REC -B-Rz  REZ AR ERE R HARERZ ERERE
RY  BREEE EREAE BRERE BRERR BREND BRBEEE GRERE BRERE BhEmE  RReESE R  2fikE
(W) (i)
Directors
EH
Wong Yin Sen 9 January 2008 1,500,000 - - (1456088) #8911 - - 21635 - 260266 11 janvary 2008 345
IR ZEEE-A0E to 10 anuary 2013
“ERNE-R
t-BE23-2%
win
Hon Lk 9 january 2008 1,500,000 - - (1456088) #8911 - - 116354 - 260266 4 February 2008 345
) ZRENE-ANE 0.3 February 2013
“ERNECR
MBE-E--£
“A=R
Wong Hei Lin 9 January 2008 1,500000 - - (1456088) 891 - - 2634 (260266) — 4 February 2008 345
TRE Z3EE-A0E 103 February 2013
“ERNECR
MBE-E--F
“A=R
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Cont'd)

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | HZZE——F+-A=+—RHILFE

32. MR REH 2NN (@)

Number Number Number Number
Number of of share of share of share Number of share
Number of -~ Number of ~ share options ~ Number of ~ No.of share options options options of share options
share options  share options exercised  share options options granted  exercised adjusted  options lapsed outstanding Exercise
Category of Date of share asat granted during during adjusted during asat during during during during asat price per
participants options granted | January 2010 theperiod  the period  the period | January 2011 theperiod  the period the period  the period 3| December 2011 Exercise period ~ share option
(note) (note v)
i n an I e 4 n an 8" TZA=t-H
2808 RtERE Rtz Rhe ke E8Bz BBz Rtz ke #BEZ KW WARRZ ERERE
R BRENE BRENE  BRERE BLENE BRERE ERENR ERENE BRERE  BhEEG EREsE (1 G
(W) (Bt w)
Directors (Contd)
&3 (%)
Pang Hong 9 January 2008 1,000,000 - - () BT - - 144238 - 13513 14 January 2008 345
E% “EZ)\E-ANH to 13 janary 2013
“IRNE-R
tHREZE-=
-At=h
Cheung Kwan Hung 9 January 2008 1,000,000 - - (970705) B275 - - 144238 - 113513 [ January 2008 349
(note i) B3k to 10 anuary 2013
Kok (Rt ~AnE “EENE-R
+t-BEZE-ZE
il
Ding Xun (note i) 9 January 2008 1,000,000 - - () B - - 144238 - 13513 22 anuary 2008 345
T (ki) %)\ o2l anuary 2013
~AnE “3E)\5- 1
ZtZR%
“3-z£-§
Zt-H
7500000 - - 219.56] 1 041,071
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For the year ended 3| December 201 | BZ=E——F+ZA=+—HILFE

32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Cont'd)

32. URGBRAERZAR (&)

Number Number Number Number
Number of of share of share of share Number of share
Number of ~ Number of ~ share options ~ Number of ~ No. of share options options options of share options
share options  share options exercised  share options options granted  exercised adjusted  options lapsed outstanding Exercise
Category of Date of share asat granted during during adjusted during asat during during during during asat price per
participants options granted | January 2010 theperiod  the period  the period | January 2011 theperiod  the period  the period  the period 31 December 2011 Bxercise period  share option
(notei) (note v)
#og-5s K-8
i i i i RE-- i an E #n  tzRA=t-H
2808 RtEhe Rz  Rie  fBz  E8Bz -B-Fr RMe  fike  EREz W2 AL ERERE
RY  EREEE BREEE BREDE BRERR BRENE EREHR BRESE BRERE BREmE  Rhene fik8E  Zf1kE
(&) (Hit)
Employees
(n aggregate)
[ (&) 9Jnuay 2008 22400000 - —(US3M) selsls - — T8 (87585) 3053834 6 February 2008 345
FE)E to 5 February 2013
-AhA “RE)\E2R
nAEZE-Z%
Nl
18 February 2008 1000000 - - nns) B - - 144238 - 73513 [7 Merch 2008 4036
“FIE to 16 Marh 2013
ZATNR RTN\EZR
HHRE-3-2F
ZRtAR
28 February 2008 4000000 - —  (3682%00) 117100 - - 576952 (347026) 347026 27 March 2008 4036
“RENEZR 1026 March 013
it “RE)\E20
ZTHEE
s
AR
5 June 2008 2000000 - - (1941.850) 58550 - - 188476 - 347026 3July 2008 3570
e Syl 10 2Juy 2013
“ZENELA
SREZR-Z%
tA-R
20 Novernber 2009 6,000000 —  (1000000)  (4853625) 146375 - - 71,19 - 867565 20 November 2009 0965
BRI 019 November 2013
t-AZ1H “EINEL-R
“tRE-E-cF
ATl
35600000 1012916 4788964
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | HZZE——F+-A=+—RHILFE

32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Contd) 32. URORER AR (B
Number Number Number Number
Number of of share of share of share Number of share
Number o~ Number of ~ share options ~ Number of ~ No.of share options options options of share options
share options  share options ~ exercised  share options options granted  exercised adjusted  options lapsed outstanding Exercise
Category of Date of share asat granted during during adjusted during asat during during during during asat price per
participants options granted | January 2010 theperiod  the period  the period | January 2011 theperiod  the period  the period the period 3| December 2011 Exercise period ~ share option
(note) (note v)
R-B-%% A
i n an e 3 4 an an 8" tZA=t-B
2EENE RitlnE Rtz Rhe ke E@Bz -R-Bz 0 RMz ke EREZ KW mARRZ ERERE
AR BREEE BREEE RRERE RRERE ERERE ERENR ERERE BRERE RREEE  BRGERE i8R ARE
(M) (W)
Others (note i
£ft (il
6 May 2008 2000000 - = (1%4180) 58550 - - 288476 - 347006 3 June 2008 3516
ZE5)\F1AH 02 June 2013
“2ENERA
ZRECE-cE
nAZR
30 March 2009 15,000,000 - —  (14560875) 43912 - — 1l - 2600694 30 March 2009 2308
“ETNEZA-TA 1029 March 013
“EINEZR
STREIET-CE
ZAZthA
28April 2010 — 130336000 (130336000 - - - - - - - 28 April 2010 N/A
(note v) oAl 0I5 NER
“E-ZERA “E-TERA
ZTAR (Kikv) ZTNAE
“E-1f
mA-t¢A
10 June 2010 — 166360583 (166360583 ) - - - - - - - 10 June 2010 N/A
(note i) o9une0ls  AER
3% “E-EEAR
FATA (M) tHEZE-1f
RANE
31 March 2011 - - - - — 920000 (3:230000) - - - 31 March 2011 0182
(note vil to 30 Merch 2016
e R T2-EZ
(i) ZT-BE
i 3
ZR=1H
17,000,000 497675 1999720
Towl 88 0,100,000 1730152 8779755
Exercisable at the end of the year
FRTffE 60100000 1730152 8119755
Weighted average exercise price (HKS) 199

NETSRE (271)

wiEn ZEERERLE R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | BZ=E——F+ZA=+—HILFE

32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Cont'd)
Notes:

(i)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(vii)

DRAGONITE

There is no vesting period for the share options granted except for 21,600,000
share options granted during 2008 are subject to a vesting period of three stages
with 33.33% of such options granted becoming exercisable on the first
anniversary, another 33.33% becoming exercisable on the second anniversary and
the remaining 33.34% becoming exercisable on the third anniversary of the

respective dates on which the options were accepted.

Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung and Mr. Ding Xun were resigned as an independent non-

executive director on 28 June 2010.

These are individuals who rendered consultancy services in respect of
management of the Ruyan atomizing cigarettes and securities investment to the
Group. The Group granted share options to them for recognising their services
similar to those rendered by other employees. The consultancy services rendered
by the consultants include, among others, coordination of potential investment
projects and advise on potential acquisition and corporate exercises. In the
opinion of the directors, the consultancy services rendered by the consultants are
similar to those rendered by the employees. Therefore, the fair value of the share
options granted to the consultants was measured by the same accounting policies

as that of the employees in accordance with HKFRS 2.

The number of share options and exercise price per share option were adjusted

immediately after the completion of the rights issue on 28 January 201 1.

The weighted average closing price of the shares immediately before 28 April
2010 on which the options were exercised was HK$0.162 per share. The closing
price of the Company's shares immediately before 28 April 2010, the date of
grant of the share options was HK$0.165 per share.

The weighted average closing price of the shares immediately before 10 June
2010 on which the options were exercised was HK$0.115 per share.The closing
price of the Company's shares immediately before 10 June 2010, the date of grant
of the share options was HK$0.101 per share.

The weighted average closing price of the shares immediately before 31 March
2011 on which the options were exercised was HK$0.183 per share.The closing
price of the Company’s shares immediately before 31 March 2011, the date of
grant of the share options was HK$0.182 per share.

INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 2011 Annual Report

2. URHBAER AR (B)
W

(i)

(i)

(i)

(vi)

(vii)

RHzBRETEFEN  ER=
JNEE 2.21,600,00017 8 % 5 5 B8 %
BEEMZEEAERY ZHTE
3BIB%E L EHERENRE—AF
AfTE - BH33.33%EH 2 BEBER
BRE_BFATE - MAERS3I34%
RE=AFRLTE -

REBRAERTAALCR -_T—ZF
NAZTNHEEBIERATES -

ZERRMEFEERREFRER
ARERBEFART AL AEEE
RAREREBURLCER ZREMA
BERLERE - ZEBAR{ZHES
s B (BB R hil BTk ERA
FREERBANCREPREER - &
R/ BRAREZHARGELUESR
REZRE - Bl BYERBRELZ
AFEREEERBEREENFE2RR
RERREE ARG HRTE -

BREHZERENBERETHEER-F
——F— A=+ N\ B R % BE

o

1E

2R -_T-ZFENA -+ \BREBRET
FRHROMETHETEAER
016287 - EFERE 2K HAH
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ZWTEARSRRO0165E T -

EE_Z-ZBERATHBRETERN
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | HZZE——F+-A=+—RHILFE

32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Contd)

The fair value of options determined at 31 March 2011, 10 June 2010 and 28
April 2010 using the Binominal model approximately were HK$783,000,
HK$5,057,000 and HK$6,843,000 respectively.

The following assumptions were used to calculate the fair values of share

32. MR REH 2NN (@)
R-E——£ZfA=f-0 —2-%
FRATARZZE-FBFMA=T/\R
RA-AXERET L BRELTESD
All%) /783,000 7T~ 5,057,000/ 7T &
6,843,0007T °

EAEEBREATFERERTUTZR

options: B
31.3.2011 10.6.2010 28.4.2010
—EB——F —E-%F —E-%F
=A=+—H NATH mA=+N\H
Grant date share price B BRE HK$0.182 AT HK$0.108 75 7T HK$0.193 T
Fxercise price 1@ HK$0.182 7 HK$0.1097L  HK$0.200 7T
Option life EAREE 5 years F 5 years F 5 years F
Expected volatility TR 18 81% 91% 94%
Dividend yield B & — — —
Risk-free interest rate ERE RN 1.845% 1.594% 2.026%

The Binominal has been used to estimate the fair value of the options. The
variables and assumptions used in computing the fair value of the share
options are based on the directors’ best estimate. The value of an option varies

with different variables of certain subjective assumptions.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revised its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the
revision of the estimates, if any, is recognised in the profit and loss, with a

corresponding adjustment to the share options reserve.

During the vear, an amount of share-based payment expenses in respect of its
share options of HK$783,000 (2010: HK$12,552,000) has been recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income with a corresponding

adjustment recognised in the Group's share option reserve.

—BADEREBREL ATE - B ER
B ATERER BARBRDEEEE
2 BEE T - BRE BEFETET
FEBRMTFA -

REEHR  AREETHRARRBBER
BHB b5t - BERHELZHE (WB) B
NERRER  BRERBTEERE -

FR-REREARODABERSR I
783,000 7T (ZE—Z 4 : 12,552,000/ 7T)
ERFE2ERRRER - HERHZRNK
SEBRERERR

011 %H% ZEEBERAA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | BZ=E——F+ZA=+—HILFE

33. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 33.

In May 2011, NWHL entered a sale and purchase agreement to (i) acquire the
entire issued share capital in and the shareholder’s loan to CTL; and (ii) in
August 201 | enter into an option agreement as disclosed in note 25, at a total
consideration of HK$117,000,000 by cash, of which HK$123,270,000
representing CTL's assets acquired and liabilities recognised and HK$6,270,000
representing Call Option and Put Option acquired. CTL is an investment
holding company and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in property
investment in Hong Kong. The Acquisition is completed on Date of

Completion.

CTLs assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of acquisition are as

KWBEEREE

“E——FHA  NWHLFTZ B EHEMN
(WBCTLEHEBTRARAERRE
FoRRZE——FNART L HER
#(MEsmmBEs)  BASRER
117,000,000 7t + H #1123,270,0005%
TRABNECTLAERMEREE M
6,270,00078 7T /& FT R B8 SR B8 HA4E KGR0
HifE - CTLAREER AR EMEBARA
FTERBAEREDERE - WERTK
AHEATEA °

W B EAFTMEBCTLE E R PR & B 10

follows: ™
HK$’000
TER
Investment property REM%E 151,009
Deposits and prepayments Ee REMNKIE 350
Bank balances and cash RITHERRR S 57
Deposits received Blize (127
Bank borrowings RITIER (28,019)
123,270

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WEEENRS ML FE

Cash consideration paid ERNRERE 117,000
Less: Bank balances and cash acquired B TR BRITARREIRS (57)
116,943

DRAGONITE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 2011 Annual Report
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RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | HZZE——F+-A=+—RHILFE

34. ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 4. WERHEKE DA
Disposal of Charm Action Group Limited (“Charm Action”) in year 2010 RZZ-FFHECharm Action
Group Limited ([Charm Action])

On 23 April 2010, the Group has disposed entire equity interest in Charm RZZE-ZFEA_+=0 " REEIN
Action at the consideration of US$| to an independent third party. Before the RE1ETMBELE=H HEERCharm
disposal, Charm Action had 51% equity interests in Ruyan America Inc. (“RAI"), Actionz 2 & B # - & Al » Charm
a limited company incorporated in the United States. The net liabilities of the ActionFE AR EBFMA L2 ETAF
Charm Action and RAI at the date of disposal were as follows: Ruyan America Inc.([RAI]) 51%#) %
1€ ° Charm Action R RAIRN & A #.2
BEFENT
HK$’000
TERT
Net liabilities disposed of HENTREZBEFE

Property, plant and equipment ME - BENIRB 3
Inventories FE I3
Trade receivables W E ZERA 164
Bank balances and cash RITEBRRR S 389
Trade payables [ERE ZERE (1,647)
Amount due to related companies FET R @ A RIFIA (20,457)
(21,535)

Cash consideration HarE —
Release of translation reserve BRnERE (368)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR 2 W (21,903)

Net cash outflow arising on disposal HEEFEZRER L F8E

Cash consideration ReRE -
Bank balances and cash disposed of BEHERTEHREAS (389)
(389)

Charm Action is an investment holding company and RAl is principally engaged Charm ActionBR EZER AR * RAIZERE

in sales of Ruyan atomizing cigarettes in the United States. During the year 3| ERENEREHRE HE_T-TF =

December 2010, management disposed of Charm Action because the Group A=+—BILFE  EBEL & Cham

had only 51% equity interest in RAI, and management considered no further  Action * A AKNEE K15 ARAl 51%MHE

capital injection would be made to Charm Action. In view of these, the Group BEBENZRTHRCharm Action)t & - &

disposed of Charm Action and RAI to an independent third party. REZERR  AEERBEYE =5 HECharm
Action &2RA.

wiEn 2RERERAET KR
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For the year ended 3| December 201 | BZ=E——F+ZA=+—HILFE

34. ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

Acquisition of Charm Action in year 2011

On 21 February 201 I, Ruyan International Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group, acquired the entire issued share capital of Charm Action at a
consideration of HK$10,000,000 by cash from an independent third party. The

acquisition has been accounted for using the purchase method.

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of acquisition are as

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

4. WERHEWB LT (£)
RZZE——FIWECharm Action

RZZE——%_AZ+t—RH x5E2
&[4 B2 7IRuyan International Limited
B3R & H 810,000,000 LM B =
77 Y Charm Action®y 2 88 2 % 17 %
Ko WBRBEENR -

KERHMUBEERMERARD

follows: T
HK$°000
TER
Inventories FE 972
Other receivables Ho ity FE Y TR IE 47
Other payables H fth & 1+ ;1B (5213)
Other borrowings H A AR (1,558)
(5,752)
Goodwill P& 15,752
Total consideration mRE 10,000
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WEES 2 RE ML FE
Cash consideration paid BENRERE 10,000

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the Group would like to
restart distribution of Ruyan atomizing cigarettes in the United States.
Management considers that Charm Action is an appropriate company to
acquire because RAI, its subsidiary, has existing distribution network in the
United States. Thus, management agreed with the vendor to acquire Charm

Action in February 201 I at HK$ 10 million.

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of Charm Action because the consideration
paid for the combination effectively included amounts in relation to the benefit
of expected synergies, revenue growth, future market development in the
United States. These benefits are not recognised separately from goodwill

because they do not meet recognition criteria for identifiable intangible assets.

DRAGONITE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 2011 Annual Report

ARREERR  FEEBRERRER S HN
EFZLIE o R Charm Action i B2 A]RAI
REBHEEDHAR  ERERREETRE
Charm Action * EEBERER_-T——F=
A LA (B 10,000,000 7T (7 & 5 W BE Charm
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ARKBENREER R EEEERRBRME
Fla  WERERERRRTSERZFE -
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For the year ended 3| December 201 | HZZE——F+-A=+—RHILFE

34. ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Contd) M. WERLHEKE AR (&)
Acquisition of Charm Action in year 2011 (Cont'd) R=Z——FW#ECharm Action (&)
Included in the loss for the year is HK$33,000 incurred by Charm Action and FAEBEBECharm Action R RAIFE
RAI. No revenue for the year contributed from Charm Action. %5 18 33,000 7T © F A I & 8 Charm

ActionZE 5 Iz -

Disposal of Charm Action in year 2011 RZ=Z——FHECharm Action

In early October 2011, management reassessed that benefits from the RZF——F+ R EBREEGHRE
acquisition of Charm Action is less than original expectation. Management Charm ActionFiG I BREHER - &
decided to streamline its business in the PRC and Hong Kong as well as North BEATESGHE BFERIEEME
America thus considered the disposal of Charm Action. 1% HE & & Charm Action °

On 31 October 2011, Ruyan International Limited disposed of the entire RZZE——F+HA=1+—H " Ruyan
issued share capital of Charm Action Group at a consideration of HK$100 by International LimitedAZ & X {E100/%
cash to another independent third party. The net liabilities of Charm Action JUIR 5 — B F =75 it ECharm Action
Group at the date of disposal were as follows: GroupZ #F 2 # T2 © Charm Action

GroupPHEREBz BEFHENT :

HK$°000
TEx

Net liabilities disposed of: HEUTREZAREFHE
Goodwill HE 15,752
Inventories FE 972
Other receivables H i i U R IR 67
Other payables H A T 58 (5.266)
Other borrowings HAth {8 K (1,558)
9,967
Cash consideration ReRE —
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR ZERE 9,967

onEn 2RERERLAE NCYH
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For the year ended 3| December 201 | BZ=E——F+ZA=+—HILFE

34. ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Contd) M. WERLEWB LR (&)
Disposal of Charm Action in year 201 | (Cont'd) R=Z——FHECharm Action (&)
The impact of Charm Action on the Group’s results and cash flows for the Charm ActionSi R EBFRNEE KRS
year is shown as follows: MENFEMT
The loss for the year from the disposal is analysis as follows FNHEEENEEATNT
HK$’000
TER
Loss from the operation of Charm Action 48 & Charm Action £ Y
(included in administrative expenses) BE (BRETERFEXA) 33
Loss on disposal of Charm Action & Charm Action f) &8 9,967
10,000

During the year, Charm Action incurred HK$33,000 to the Group's net @ Charm Actionz 4 33,000/ 7T & AZK

operating cash flows. SERERIREFH -
35. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 35. EREE
2011 2010
= —T-%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TET
Capital expenditure contracted for but not FATIEA ZETHE
provided in the consolidated financial ARGEMBHRERF
statements in respect of BEB2ERFX
— acquisition of intangible assets - WBERTEE 317 305
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For the year ended 3| December 201 | HZZE——F+-A=+—RHILFE

36. OPERATING LEASES 3. KEHE
The Group as lessee AEBERAEEA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for future AEERBEHREERADERBAAE
minimum lease payments in respect of rented premises which fall due as EREHSHINNT -
follows:
2011 2010
—g--%  -T-%T%
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET TET
Within one year —FRQ 4,494 2,169
In the second to fifth year E_ERF 461 523
More than five year HEE — —
4,955 2,692
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for certain REMeRAEEHBEETHAE
of its office premises. Leases are negotiated for six years and rentals are fixed ENEE  BHABTRAF  WEHE
for two years. EE -
The Group as lessor FEEEREHEA
All of the properties held have a committed tenant for next five years. FIEMBMERRAIFHAEARRR
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with a tenant RBEBMR KEBEREBEPRTIA
for the following future minimum lease payments: BHREBEERETH -
2011 2010
—g--%  -T-%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
THER TR
Within one year —FR 4,200
In second to fifth year inclusive EF_Z0hF (BREEMEF) 15,050 —
19,250

wiEn 2RERERAET RS
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37. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES 37. BHRERGTE

140

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme (the “Scheme”) for
all qualifying employees of the Group in Hong Kong. The assets of the Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group, in funds under the control of the
trustees. During the vyear, contributions made by the Group to the Scheme

amounted HK$362,000 (2010: HK$276,000).

The employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are members of retirement
benefits schemes operated by the PRC government. The relevant PRC
subsidiaries are required to make contributions to the state retirement
schemes in the PRC based on certain percentage of the monthly salaries of
their current employees to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to make the specific

contributions.

During the year, contributions made by the Group to the state retirement
schemes amounted HK$555,000 (2010: HK$239,000).

The contributions made by the Group to the Scheme and state retirement
schemes are charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income

when employees have rendered service to the Group.
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AEBREEBMAECEKREERE®R
A ERE (518 5Bz EE
TDHXEAZRGz2ESRE  THASE
BEENH - TR - AEE M E{EL
3 362,0008 L (ZF — T F -
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R 2 RRE NGB - BB
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 38. BEALRS
The remuneration of directors and other members of key management during EENHEHMBTEERABFAZEHHM
the year was as follows: I

2011 2010

—E-——F —T-FTF

HK$°000 HK$'000

TER FHET

Short-term benefits K HIRR A 5,363 3,822

Post employment benefits BER 2B A 80 52

5,443 3,874

The remuneration of directors and key executives is determined by the EERTIETBRABZEFMBEMES
SERMBEARBERMEGBERET

remuneration committee having regard to the performance of individuals and

market trends.

39. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 39.
POSITION OF THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at the

FRADARBEMRARZER

BARARARERRBBMARZER

end of the reporting period includes: B
2011 2010
= s
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET TAET
Investments in subsidiaries RENBE AR — —
Amount due from a subsidiary A IEPNGIE 117,000 —
Bank balance and cash RITERRRS 42,468 3917
Other receivables and prepayments H th fEURIB R B 5RIE 1,309 781
Total assets BEE 160,777 4,698
Share Capital (LN 271,731 9,236
Reserves @ (183,063) (30,151)
Total equity farE (88,668) (20915)
onan LEERAERAT RN
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 201 HZE=

40. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

The following table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion
of the directors, principally affected the results or assets of the Group.To give

details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in

particulars of excessive length.

T—F+-ASt—RLER

Proportion of

nominal value of

Issued and

Place of fully paid
incorporation or share capital/

registration/ registered capital

40. TERBEAL T
TRHEFIESRAUAEE 24

EARTE
%E@ﬁ ! %E’T/\/\'Tﬁ”;ﬁ%

24

E

]|

ZER TMTJ%’DJ
Al 2

BIEBNIE -

Issued capital/

registered

capital held

by the Company

operation BRTR VA UNCESY )
Name of subsidiary Eﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁiﬁ%ﬂﬁ/ BERE Eﬁﬁﬁﬁzﬁﬁﬁ/ Principal activities
WEARERE EE S cE &R AMERAZEDHL FERK
2011 2010
—g--f —T-TF
% %
Chenlong Group Limited BVI/Hong Kong US$20,000 100 [00  Investment holding
RERZHEE,/  20,000%T REER
BB
New Wellon Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 100 Investment holding
MEEFRD Bk 10,000 & 7T REER
Central Town Limited BVI/Hong Kong US$| 100 —  Investment holding
RBRAEE/BE 1%L REER
East Champion Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 —  Property investment
BEARD BA 28T in Hong Kong
REEZNERE
Ruyan Group (Hong Kong) Hong Kong HK$ 100 100 100 Investment holding
Limited Bk 100 7T RAER
mNEE (BE) BRAF
Jian New Wellon Ginseng PRC RMB7,000,000 100 [00  Purchase and sales of
Industry Co., Ltd. H (note a) raw ginseng
(“Jian New Wellon") 7,000,000 A R RERHEERZ
ERNERLERRA (Pl &E a)

2 RE
(IR ERE])
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RE B HRRME

40. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

Place of
incorporation or

registration/

For the year ended 3| December 201 | HZZE——F+-A=+—RHILFE

Proportion of
nominal value of
Issued and

fully paid

share capital/

registered capital

40. TEWBAT (&)

Issued capital/
registered
capital held
by the Company

operation BRTR NGRS
Name of subsidiary SRR HBERAK ERTRAEE Principal activities
o) PNCR=E EES ks HAMER AMEXRZED L FEREK
2011 2010
—g-—-§ —T-ZF
% %

Shenyang Chenlong Longevity ~ PRC US$3,705,000 100 [00  Processing and sales of
Ginseng Co.,, Ltd. H (note b) a series of health care
(“Shenyang Chenlong") 3,705,000 % 7T products

EERERKZERAR (Ff5EDb) T RHE—RTIRE R
(DEGER#E])

Shenyang Jinlong Health PRC US$1,220,000 100 00 Processing and sales of
Care Products Co,, Ltd. H (note ¢) ginseng and related
("Shenyang Jinlong") 1,220,000 £ 7T products

BHeRRERERLDA (Fff&Ec) MIRBEEAZR
k) HEER

Shenyang Jinlong PRC HK$20,000,000 100 [00  Processing and sales of
Pharmaceutical Co,, Ltd. s (note d) Pharmaceutical products
("Jinlong Pharmaceutical”) 20,000,000 & 7T and production of

BEEEEXARAR (Pg3Ed) electronics cigarettes
([emEEx]) components

MIRBEEERR
TEBFREN

Beijing SBT-Ruyan Technology ~ PRC US$5,000,000 100 100 Research and develop
and Development Co, Ltd.  # (note ) production and sales
("BJ SBT") 5,000,000 & 7T of Ruyan atomizing

LT RBERFNEREER (BI3E £) cigarettes
BRAT] MR ERBNERE
(MERBERE]) ZHEERHEE

RN 143
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | BZ=E——F+ZA=+—HILFE

40. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

Proportion of

nominal value of

Issued and Issued capital/
Place of fully paid registered
incorporation or share capital/ capital held

registration/ registered capital

by the Company

40. TEMBLTE (8)

operation ERTR Y UNCESY ]
Name of subsidiary SRR HBERAK EETRAEE Principal activities
WEBLAR AR EESE AMER AMEXAZED L TEXH
2011 2010
- -7
% %

Shenyang SBT Technology PRC US$500,000 100 100 Research and develop
and Development Co, Ltd. (note g) production and sales
("Shenyang SBT") 500,000 37T of Ruyan atomizing

BRERFRER (FF3%E g) cigarettes
ARART MARRZNER(E
(IEHERE]) ZEEREE

Tianjin SBT-Ruyan Technology ~ PRC HK$56,000,000 100 [00  Research and develop
and Development H (note h) production and sales
Corporation (“Tianjin SBT") 56,000,000 /& 7T of Ruyan atomizing

REBERFIERBRER GEXY cigarettes
BRAT] MABREMERLR
([REERE]) ZHEERHEE

I RREREEE PRC RMB 100,000 100 100 Sales of Ruyan atomizing
BREMFEDQT a2 (note e) Cigarettes

100,000 A R HEMERLE
(5T e)
IR IMERRE R PRC US$749,990 100 - Research and develop
BRAT H (note i) production and sales
749,990 & 7T of Ruyan atomizing
(BFzE) cigarettes
MAERZNER(E
ZHEERHE

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of the year
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B HRRME

For the year ended 3| December 201 | HZZE——F+-A=+—RHILFE

40. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)
Notes:

(@)

©

®

()

Jian New Wellon is a wholly foreign-owned enterprise for a period of 15 years

commencing from 22 June 1998.

Shenyang Chenlong is a wholly foreign-owned enterprise for a period of |5 years

commencing from 7 May 1999.

Shenyang Jinlong is a sino-foreign equity joint venture for a period of |5 years
commencing from 27 November 1992 established under a joint venture
agreement with another PRC party who is the former shareholder of Success

Century holding the remaining 20% shareholding of Shenyang Jinlong.

Pursuant to an agreement made between the Group and the former shareholder
of Success Century during the year 2004, the remaining 20% shareholding of
Shenyang Jinlong was transferred to the Group by way of acquisition of Success

Century and Shenyang Jinlong became the wholly foreign owned enterprise.

Jinlong Pharmaceutical is a wholly foreign-owned enterprise for a period of |5

years commencing from 8 June 2001.

It REAREHEBRAME AR s a wholly foreign-owned enterprise for a

period of 20 years commencing from |3 December 2007.

BJ SBT is wholly foreign-owned enterprises for a period of 10 years commencing
from 29 December 2003.

Shenyang SBT is a wholly foreign-owned enterprise for a period of 12 years

commencing from 21 July 2003.

Tianjin SBT is a wholly foreign-owned enterprise for a period of 10 years

commencing from 21 June 2006.

I REREER AR AR is a wholly foreign-owned enterprise for a period

of 15 years commencing from 29 June 2011,

(@)

40. EMBARF (7
OEE

ELMEERFIBBEARE B
ANNERAZ+ZBRBLEE - B
THF -

BERES—FIBBEELE BN
AAFERRLRRREE  BRE+H
Fo

GeEALERRE—HEEHHER
RAKEEERLZFINEGED
B-ANZ&+—A=+tBAK
g BEBTRE  mMZERAUEAE
BEEGSEFBR20%RE 2 Success

CenturyZ BIERE °

&
EZ
E

BB AL E HESuccess Century,Z Bl T
BER-ZZTMFI L2 HE  Ehe
B2 % £ 20% M 7 3 1B U B Success
CenturyEE T ASE - MERSEK
AB-RINEBERE -
PEEER—FIEBELCE BHZT
T-FXNANBRBEE 7% Bt A
o

EREERTREEREARAA R

NEBEELE B-TFEFT-AT
“ARKEE RB—tF-

ERBRERIEBELR B
ZE=F+-A-ThARHARKE
2 RBEtE-

BRERERIERELE B
FE-FLtA-+-HERHE
2 BHT-F-

REBRBRINBEBELCE B
ZEREFANAZT—HERBE
2 RETEFE-

tRMENEZERER AT AN
BECE E-T——F AT
NEBRREE  BH+AF -

011 %H% ZEEBERAA
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Financial Summary

IBELE

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—-HLFE

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
—E——-F5 —T-TF ZTTNF ZTTINF ZITTLF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TExT FHT FHT FHT FHT
RESULTS ES
Turnover BEHE (232,907) (61,425) (137,388) 213,925 185,619
(Loss) profit before tax BiEl (E8E) &F (313,482) (232,839) (441,855) (147,374) 38,734
Income tax expense PREH = i (599) (492) (2,052) (17,270) (4,495)
(Loss) profit for the year AEE (E8) =5 (314,081) (233,331) (443,907) (164,644) 34239
Attributable to: Ah
Equity holders of the parent B A B EZIFH A (314,081) (233,331) (443,907) (164,644) 26,116
Non-controlling interest TR — — — — 8,123
(314,081) (233,331) (443,907) (164,644) 34,239
As at 3| December
BW+=A=+-8
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
—g-—-% -—T-TF -—TTEAF -TT\F -TELHE
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHT FHT FHT FAT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ¥EREE
Total assets mEE 375,323 129210 271,412 769,861 885,527
Total liabilities maffE (139,471) (56,320) (227,205) (286,654) (280,710)
235,852 72,890 44,207 483,207 604,817
Equity attributable to equity ~ ANERfEIEZ=FFA A
holders of the period FEfE 2 235,852 72,890 44207 483,207 604,817

146

DRAGONITE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

2011 Annual Report






	封面
	目錄
	公司資料
	主席報告及管理層討論與分析
	企業管治報告
	董事及高級管理人員簡介
	董事會報告書
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合全面收益表
	綜合財務狀況表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	綜合財務報表附註
	財務概要
	封底

